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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets

ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

(Dollars in thousands, Except per Share Data)

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold

Cash and cash equivalents

Interest bearing deposits with banks
Restricted investments in bank stock
Securities available for sale

Loans held for sale
Loans
Less: Allowance for loan losses

Net Loans

Premises and equipment, net

Cash surrender value of life insurance
Goodwill and intangible assets
Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing
Interest bearing

Total deposits

Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt
Accrued interest and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders Equity

Preferred Stock, $1.25 par value per share; 500,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding

(Unaudited)
June 30,
2012

$ 15,798
0

15,798

109,725
11,495
283,078

4,825
837,980
(36,235)

806,570

26,983
24,579
936
3,593
45,718

$ 1,328,475

$ 118,062
1,026,322

1,144,384

27,493
38,142
10,827

1,220,846

0

Common stock, no par value - $ 0.05205 stated value per share 50,000,000 shares authorized; 8,066,073 and

8,055,787 shares issued; 8,065,261 and 8,054,975 shares outstanding

Additional paid - in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Treasury stock - common, 812 and 812 shares, at cost

420

122,616
(16,937)

1,550
(20)

(Audited)*
December 31,
2011

$ 19,630
0

19,630

90,039
11,758
310,365

2,553
965,440
(43,715)

924,278

27,183
24,147
1,041
4,548
31,108

$ 1,444,097

$ 111,930
1,104,972

1,216,902

35,013
53,798
10,187

1,315,900

419
122,514
1,195
4,089
(20)
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Total shareholders equity 107,629

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $ 1,328,475

* The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011 has been derived from audited financial statements at that date.
The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

128,197

$ 1,444,097
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

(Dollars in thousands, Except per Share Data)
Interest and dividend income

Interest and fees on loans

Interest and dividends on investment securities
Taxable

Tax-exempt

Short-term investments

Total interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Interest on deposits

Interest on short-term borrowings
Interest on long-term debt

Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income

Service charges on deposit accounts

Other service charges, commissions and fees
Trust department income

Brokerage income

Mortgage banking activities

Earnings on life insurance

Merchant processing revenue

Other income (loss)

Investment securities gains

Total noninterest income

Noninterest expense

Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense

Furniture and equipment

Data processing

Telephone

Adpvertising and bank promotions
FDIC Insurance

Professional services

Taxes other than income
Collection expense

OREO expense

Intangible asset amortization
Other operating expenses

Three Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2012 2011
$ 10,044 $ 12,383
1,029 2,364
474 769
82 21
11,629 15,537
1,862 2,359
41 95
180 273
2,083 2,727
9,546 12,810
23,000 21,230

(13,454) (8,420)

1,543 1,645
284 327
1,116 1,034
421 484
727 636
250 250
0 285
91 79
2,595 469
7,027 5,209
4,977 4,176
513 477
727 692
134 349
182 165
308 296
710 762
751 546
230 205
579 177
100 40
52 53
1,470 1,784

Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2012 2011
$ 21,150 $24,818
2,337 4,459
1,088 1,540
143 45
24,718 30,862
3,840 4,884
93 218
397 562
4,330 5,664
20,388 25,198
42,200 24,425
(21,812) 773
3,062 3,130
598 697
2,252 2,046
784 888
1,212 1,332
498 580
0 540
14) 224
4,826 848
13,218 10,285
9,634 9,008
1,027 1,039
1,405 1,373
263 661
342 341
681 554
1,231 1,312
1,552 868
464 410
1,297 331
476 78
105 105
3,139 3,081
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Total noninterest expenses 10,733 9,722 21,616 19,161

Income (loss) before income tax (benefit) (17,160) (12,933) (30,210) (8,103)
Income tax expense (benefit) (7,246) (2,310) (12,078) (1,307)
Net income (loss) $ (9914) $(10,623) $(18,132) $ (6,796)

Per share information:

Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (1.23) $ (133) $ (225 $ (0.85)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (1.23) (1.33) (2.25) (0.85)
Dividends per share 0.00 0.23 0.00 0.46

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) (Unaudited)

ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

(Dollars in thousands)

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities available for sale arising during the period
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) realized in net income

Net unrealized gains (losses)
Tax effect

Unrealized holding gains (losses) in fair value of derivatives used for cash flow hedges
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) realized in net income

Net unrealized gains (losses)
Tax effect

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax and reclassification adjustments
Total comprehensive income (loss)

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

Three Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2012 2011

$ (9914) $(10,623)

(118) 4,729
(2,595) (469)
(2,713) 4,260

949 (1,491)
(1,764) 2,769
0 140
0 0
0 140

0 (49)
0 91
(1,764) 2,860

$(11,678) $ (7,763)

Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
$(18,132) $(6,796)

919 5,654
(4,826) (848)
3,907) 4,806

1,368 (1,682)
(2,539) 3,124
0 (129)
0 (118)
0 (247)
0 86
0 (161)
(2,539) 2,963
$(20,671) $(3,833)
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Balance, January 1, 2011

Net income (loss)

Total other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Cash dividends ($0.46 per share)

Stock-based compensation plans:

Issuance of stock

Purchase of treasury stock (2,232 shares)
Issuance of treasury stock (2,719 shares)

Balance, June 30, 2011

Balance, January 1, 2012

Net income (loss)

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes
Stock-based compensation plans:

Issuance of stock (8,879 shares)

Compensation expense

Issuance of stock under dividend reinvestment plan
(1,407 shares)

Balance, June 30, 2012

Common
Stock
$416

O =

$417

$419

$ 420

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

$ 121,508

0
0
0

473
0
19)
$ 121,962

$ 122,514
0
0

68
23

11

$ 122,616

Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Retained
Earnings
(Accumulated
Deficit)
$ 38,680
(6,796)

0
(3,677)

0

0
0

$ 28,207

$ 1,195
(18,132)
0

0
0

0

$ (16,937)

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)
$ (88)

0
2,963
0

0

0
0

$ 2,875

$ 4,089
0
(2,539)

0
0

0

$ 1,550

Treasury
Stock

¢ 32
0

¢ 20

Total
Shareholders
Equity
$ 160,484
(6,796)
2,963
(3,677)

474

54
47

$ 153,441

128,197
(18,132)
(2,539)

69
23

11

$ 107,629
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

(Dollars in Thousands, Except per Share Data)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization of premiums on securities available for sale
Depreciation and amortization

Provision for loan losses

Net change in loans held for sale

Net (gain) loss on disposal of other real estate owned
Write-down of other real estate owned

Deferred income taxes

Investment securities gains

Gain on sale of rate swap

Earnings on cash surrender value of life insurance
Decrease in accrued interest receivable

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable
Other, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in interest bearing deposits with banks and short term investments
Sales of available for sale securities

Maturities, repayments and calls of available for sale securities
Purchases of available for sale securities

Net proceeds (purchases) of restricted investments in bank stocks
Net (increase) decrease in loans

Investment in limited partnerships

Purchases of bank premises and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of other real estate owned

Proceeds from sale of rate swap

Purchases of bank owned life insurance

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in deposits

Net decrease in short term purchased funds
Payments on long-term debt

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Purchase of treasury stock

Net proceeds from issuance of treasury stock

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
$ (18,132) $ (6,796)
3,505 2,787
1,294 1,391
42,200 24,425
2,272) (2,252)
79 (30)
343 181
(2,538) (3,791)
(4,826) (848)
0 (118)
432) (521)
955 30
(425) 26
(9,644) (1,307)
10,107 13,177
(19,686) (2,660)
93,846 36,679
38,444 29,359
(107,587) (52,539)
263 (533)
75,617 (48,546)
0 (55)
(781) (600)
1,536 388
0 118
0 (500)
81,652 (38,889)
(72,518) 71,819
(7,520) (24,972)
(15,656) (20,425)
0 (3,677)
103 474
0 54)
0 47
(95,591) 23,212
3,832) (2,500)
19,630 19,200
$ 15,798 $ 16,700

10
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Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest

Income taxes

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing activities:

Other real estate acquired in settlement of loans

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements

$

$

4,755
1,267

2,130

$ 5,638
3,591
$ 556

11



Edgar Filing: ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations - Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. (the Company ) is a financial holding company whose primary activity consists of
supervising its wholly-owned subsidiary, Orrstown Bank (the Bank ). The Company operates through its office in Shippensburg, Pennsylvania.
Orrstown Bank provides services through its network of offices in Franklin, Cumberland and Perry Counties of Pennsylvania and in Washington
County, Maryland. The Bank engages in lending services for commercial loans, residential loans, commercial mortgages and various forms of
consumer lending. Deposit services include checking, savings, time and money market deposits. The Bank also provides investment and
brokerage services through its Orrstown Financial Advisors division. The Bank has twenty-one branches located in Shippensburg (2), Carlisle
(5), Spring Run, Orrstown, Chambersburg (3), Mechanicsburg (2), Camp Hill, Greencastle, Newport (2), Duncannon, and New Bloomfield,
Pennsylvania and Hagerstown, Maryland. The Company and its subsidiary are subject to the regulation of certain federal and state agencies and
undergo periodic examinations by such regulatory authorities.

Basis of Presentation - The unaudited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary are presented for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011 and have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ( GAAP ) for
interim financial information, the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the
information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. However, unaudited information reflects all adjustments
(consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments) that are, in the opinion of management, considered necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim period. Information presented at December 31, 2011 is condensed from
audited year-end financial statements. For further information, refer to the audited consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto,
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated. Operating results for the three and six months ended June 30,
2012, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2012.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for losses on loans and the
valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. In connection with the determination of the allowance
for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate, management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and foreclosed real estate, future additions to the allowances may be
necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,
periodically review the Company s allowance for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate. Such agencies may require the Company to
recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments concerning information available to them at the time of their examination.
Because of these factors, management s estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio and the related allowance may change in the near
term.

12
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Subsequent Events - GAAP establishes standards for accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before
financial statements are issued. The subsequent events principle sets forth the period after the balance sheet date during which management of a
reporting entity should evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition in the financial statements, identifies the
circumstances under which an entity should recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial statements,
and specifies the disclosures that should be made about events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date. In preparing these financial
statements, the Company evaluated the events and transactions that occurred after June 30, 2012, through the date these financial statements
were filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the Commission ).

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company grants agribusiness, commercial, residential and consumer loans to customers in its market area.
Although the Company maintains a diversified loan portfolio, a significant portion of its customers ability to honor their contracts is dependent
upon economic sectors for construction contractors, residential and non-residential building operators, sales finance, sub-dividers and
developers. Management evaluates each customer s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if collateral is
deemed necessary by the Company upon the extension of credit, is based on management s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held
varies, but generally includes real estate and equipment.

The types of securities the Company invests in are included in Note 2, Securities Available for Sale and the type of lending the Company
engages in are included in Note 3, Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, balances due
from banks and federal funds sold, all of which have original maturities of 90 days or less.

Restricted Investments in Bank Stocks - Restricted investment in bank stocks, which represents required investments in the common stock of
correspondent banks, is carried at cost as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and consists of common stock of the Federal Reserve Bank
of Philadelphia, Atlantic Central Bankers Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank ( FHLB ) of Pittsburgh stocks.

Management evaluates the restricted investment in bank stocks for impairment in accordance with Accounting Standard Codification ( ASC )
Topic 942, Accounting by Certain Entities (Including Entities with Trade Receivables) That Lend to or Finance the Activities of Others.
Management s determination of whether these investments are impaired is based on their assessment of the ultimate recoverability of their cost
rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value. The determination of whether a decline affects the ultimate recoverability of their cost is
influenced by criteria such as (1) the significance of the decline in net assets of the correspondent bank as compared to the capital stock amount
for the correspondent bank and the length of time this situation has persisted, (2) commitments by the correspondent bank to make payments
required by law or regulation and the level of such payments in relation to the operating performance of the correspondent bank, and (3) the
impact of legislative and regulatory changes on institutions and, accordingly, on the customer base of the correspondent bank.

Management believes no impairment charge is necessary related to the restricted investment in bank stocks as of June 30, 2012. However,
security impairment analysis is completed quarterly and the determination that no impairment had occurred as of June 30, 2012 is no assurance
that impairment may not occur in the future.

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Banks - Interest bearing deposits in banks are due on demand or mature within one year and are carried at cost.

13
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Securities - Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and
recorded at amortized cost. Trading securities are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value included in earnings. As of June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 the Company had no held to maturity or trading securities. Securities not classified as held to maturity or trading, including
equity securities with readily determinable fair values, are classified as available for sale and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and
losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income
using the interest method over the terms of the securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are
determined using the specific identification method.

The Company follows the accounting guidance related to recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairment (FASB ASC
320-10). This guidance specifies that (@) if a company does not have the intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery and (b) it is more likely
than not that it will not have to sell the debt security prior to recovery, the security would not be considered other-than-temporarily impaired
unless there is a credit loss. When an entity does not intend to sell the security, and it is more likely than not, the entity will not have to sell the
security before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize the credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment of a debt security in
earnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income. For held-to-maturity debt securities, the amount of an other-than-temporary
impairment recorded in other comprehensive income for the noncredit portion of a previous other-than-temporary impairment should be
amortized prospectively over the remaining life of the security on the basis of the timing of future estimated cash flows of the security.

The Company had no debt securities it deemed to be other than temporarily impaired at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

The Company s securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market risk, currency and credit risks. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible
that changes in risks in the near term would materially affect investment assets reported in the consolidated financial statements.

For equity securities, when the Company has decided to sell an impaired available-for-sale security and the entity does not expect the fair value
of the security to fully recover before the expected time of sale, the security is deemed other-than-temporarily impaired in the period in which
the decision to sell is made. The Company recognizes an impairment loss when the impairment is deemed other than temporary even if a
decision to sell has not been made.

Loans Held for Sale - Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value
(LOCM). Gains and losses on loan sales (sales proceeds minus carrying value) are recorded in non-interest income.

Loans - The Company grants commercial, mortgage, and consumer loans to its customers located principally in south-central Pennsylvania and
northern Maryland. The ability of the Company s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic
conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their
outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans.
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and
amortized as a yield adjustment over the respective term of the loan.

For all classes of loans, the accrual of interest income on loans, including impaired loans, ceases when principal or interest is past due 90 days or
more or immediately if, in the opinion of management, full collection is unlikely. Interest will continue to accrue on loans past due 90 days or
more if the collateral is adequate to cover principal and interest, and the loan is in the process of collection. Interest accrued, but not collected, as
of the date of placement on nonaccrual status, is reversed and charged against current interest income, unless fully collateralized. Subsequent
payments received are either applied to the

-10 -
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outstanding principal balance or recorded as interest income, depending upon management s assessment of the ultimate collectability of
principal. Loans are returned to accrual status, for all loan classes, when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought
current, the loan has performed in accordance with the contractual terms of the note for a reasonable period of time, generally six months, and
the ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is reasonably assured. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the
loan.

Loans, the terms of which are modified, are classified as troubled debt restructurings if a concession was granted, for legal or economic reasons,
related to a debtor s financial difficulties. Concessions granted under a troubled debt restructuring typically involve a temporary deferral of
scheduled loan payments, an extension of a loan s stated maturity date, temporary reduction in interest rates, or granting of an interest rate below
market rates given the risk of the transaction. If a modification occurs while the loan is on accruing status, it will continue to accrue interest
under the modified terms. Nonaccrual troubled debt restructurings are restored to accrual status if scheduled principal and interest payments,
under the modified terms, are current for six months after modification, and the borrower continues to demonstrate its ability to meet the
modified terms. Troubled debt restructurings are evaluated individually for impairment if they have been restructured during the most recent
calendar year, or if they are not performing according to their modified terms.

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is reestablished as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance is
confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management s periodic review of the
collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the
borrower s ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently
subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

Loans Serviced - The Bank administers secondary market mortgage programs available through the FHLB of Pittsburgh and the Federal
National Mortgage Association and offers residential mortgage products and services to customers. The Bank originates single-family residential
mortgage loans for immediate sale in the secondary market, and retains the servicing of those loans. At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
the balance of loans serviced for others was $309,117,000 and $299,998,000.

Transfers of Financial Assets - Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control
over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right
(free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does
not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Foreclosed Real Estate - Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are initially recorded at the lower of carrying
value or fair value less estimated costs to sell the underlying collateral. Capitalized costs include accrued interest and any costs that significantly
improve the value of the properties. After foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the real estate is carried at the
lower of its carrying amount or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Foreclosed real estate totaled $2,337,000 and $2,165,000 as of June 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011 and is included in other assets.

Stock Compensation Plans - The Company has stock option plans that cover employees and non-employee directors. Stock compensation
accounting guidance (FASB ASC 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation) requires that the compensation cost relating to share-based
payment transactions be
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recognized in financial statements. That cost is measured based on the grant date fair value of the stock award, including a Black-Scholes model
for stock options. Compensation cost for all stock awards are calculated and recognized over the employees service period, generally defined as
the vesting period.

Income Taxes - The Company accounts for Income Taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance (FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes).
The income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense: current and deferred. Current income tax expense
reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of
deductions over revenues. The Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the
net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and
enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur.

Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred tax assets are recognized if it
is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more likely
than not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related appeals or
litigation processes, if any. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the
largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has full
knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold
considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the reporting date and is subject to management s judgment. Deferred tax assets
are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, on income taxes as a component of income tax
expense.

Treasury Stock - Common stock shares repurchased are recorded as treasury stock at cost.

Earnings Per Share - Basic earnings per share represent income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the additional common shares that would have been outstanding
if dilutive potential common shares had been issued. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding
stock options.

Treasury shares are not deemed outstanding for earnings per share calculations.

Comprehensive Income - Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income
includes unrealized gains on securities available for sale, and unrealized losses related to factors other than credit on debt securities and
unrealized gains and losses on cash flow hedges.

The component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes, at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 consisted of unrealized
gains on securities available for sale and totaled $1,550,000 and $4,089,000.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other
assumptions. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions
could significantly affect the estimates.

Segment Reporting - The Company only operates in one significant segment - Community Banking. The Company s non-banking activities are
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-2, A Creditor s Determination of Whether a Restructuring is
a Troubled Debt Restructuring. This guidance clarifies which loan modifications constitute troubled debt restructurings and is intended to assist
creditors in determining whether a modification of the terms of a receivable meets the criteria to be considered a troubled debt restructuring,
both for the purpose of recording an impairment charge and for disclosure of troubled debt restructurings. In evaluating whether a restructuring
constitutes a troubled debt restructuring, a creditor must separately conclude, under the guidance clarified by ASU 2011-2, that both of the
following exist: (a) the restructuring constitutes a concession; and (b) the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties. As allowed by the
guidance, the Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2011-2 in the quarter ending June 30, 2011. See further discussion in Note 3 - Loans
Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. The ASU requires certain disclosures about transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy, sensitivity of fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, and categorization by level of
items that are reported at cost but are required to be disclosed at fair value. The disclosures are to be applied prospectively in the first interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05,
which defers certain provisions of ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income. One of ASU 2011-05 s provisions requires entities to
present reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income by component in both the statement in which net income is
presented and the statement in which other comprehensive income is presented (for both interim and annual financial statements). Accordingly,
this requirement is indefinitely deferred by ASU 2011-12 and will be further deliberated by the FASB at a future date. ASUs 2011-05 and
2011-12 are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011, and should be applied
retrospectively for all periods presented in the financial statements. The Company adopted the provisions of this guidance which are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. The ASU
requires new disclosures regarding the nature of an entity s rights of setoff and related arrangements associated with its financial instruments and
derivative instruments. The new disclosures are designed to make GAAP financial statements more comparable to those prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards. The new disclosures entail presenting information about both gross and net exposures. The new
disclosure requirements are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and interim periods therein;
retrospective application is required. The Company has not yet completed its evaluation of this ASU; however, since the provisions of ASU
2011-11 are disclosure-related, the Company s adoption of this ASU is not expected to have an impact to its financial condition or results of
operations.

NOTE 2. SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the investment securities portfolio was comprised exclusively of securities classified as available for
sale , resulting in investment securities being carried at fair value. The amortized cost and fair values of investment securities available for sale at
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were:

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
June 30, 2012
U.S. Treasury $ 14,994 $ 0 $ 11 $ 14,983
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) 39,855 171 34 39,992
States and political subdivisions 38,803 1,254 15 40,042
-13 -

18



Edgar Filing: ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

GSE residential mortgage-backed securities 186,736 1,211 207 187,740
Total debt securities 280,388 2,636 267 282,757
Equity securities 305 27 11 321
Totals $ 280,693 $2,663 $278 $ 283,078
(Dollars in thousands) Amortized Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2011

U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) $ 41,563 $ 2,081 $ 22 $ 43,622
States and political subdivisions 75,232 2,852 33 78,051
GSE residential mortgage-backed securities 186,018 1,783 217 187,584
Total debt securities 302,813 6,716 272 309,257
Equity securities 1,260 41 193 1,108
Totals $ 304,073 $ 6,757 $ 465 $ 310,365

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company s available for sale securities that are not deemed to be
other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
June 30, 2012
U.S. Treasury $ 14,983 $ 11 $ 0 $ 0 $ 14,983 $ 11
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) 16,682 34 0 0 16,682 34
States and political subdivisions 2,063 15 0 0 2,063 15
GSE residential mortgage-backed securities 46,095 169 4,134 38 50,229 207
Total debt securities 79,823 229 4,134 38 83,957 267
Equity securities 0 0 68 11 68 11
Total temporarily impaired securities $79,823 $ 229 $4,202 $ 49 $ 84,025 $ 278
December 31, 2011
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) $ 8,685 $ 22 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,685 $ 22
States and political subdivisions 0 0 1,467 33 1,467 33
GSE residential mortgage-backed securities 45,019 217 0 0 45,019 217
Total debt securities 53,704 239 1,467 33 55,171 272
Equity securities 751 193 0 0 751 193
Total temporarily impaired securities $ 54,455 $ 432 $ 1,467 $ 33 $ 55,922 $ 465

The Company had 29 securities and 35 securities at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 in which the amortized cost exceeds their values, as
discussed below.

U.S. Treasuries and Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE). Four U.S Treasuries and 20 GSE securities, including mortgage-backed
securities, have amortized costs which exceed their fair values, all but one of which are in the less than 12 months category at June 30, 2012. At
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December 31, 2011, the Company had 15 GSE securities with unrealized losses, all of which were in the less than 12 months category. These
unrealized losses have been caused by a rise in interest rates from the time the securities were purchased. The contractual terms of those
investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost bases of the investments. Because the Company
does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before
recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at June 30, 2012 or at December 31, 2011.

_14-
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State and Political Subdivisions. Three state and political subdivision securities had an amortized cost which exceeded their fair value for less
than 12 months at June 30, 2012. At December 31, 2011, two state and political subdivision securities had unrealized losses, both of which were
greater than 12 months. These unrealized losses have been caused by a rise in interest rates from the time the securities were purchased.
Management considers the investment rating, the state of the issuer of the security and other credit support in determining whether the security is
other-than-temporarily impaired. Because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the
Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not
consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at June 30, 2012 or at December 31, 2011.

Equity Securities. Two equity securities have cost which exceeds their fair value, both of which had unrealized losses for greater than 12 months
at June 30, 2012. At December 31, 2011, 18 equity securities had unrealized losses, all of which had unrealized losses for less than 12 months.
These securities are among various industries, including financial, industrial, consumer, energy, health care and a large cap fund, In considering
whether the equity securities are other-than-temporarily impaired, management reviews the severity and duration of decline in fair value,
research reports, analysts recommendations, credit rating changes, news stories and other relevant information. Management believes the equity
securities are not other-than-temporarily impaired and will equal or exceed our cost basis within a reasonable period of time. Since these
companies are considered viable and carry the possibility of price appreciation in the future, impairments are considered temporary. The
Company recorded no other than temporary impairment expense on equity securities for the three or six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

The amortized cost and fair values of securities available for sale at June 30, 2012 by contractual maturity are shown below. Contractual
maturities will differ from expected maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties.

Available for Sale

Fair

(Dollars in thousands) Amortized Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 4,150 $ 4,179
Due after one year through five years 43,122 43,222
Due after five years through ten years 22,309 22,728
Due after ten years 24,071 24,888
GSE residential mortgage-backed securities 186,736 187,740
Total debt securities 280,388 282,757
Equity securities 305 321
$ 280,693 $ 283,078

Gross gains on the sales of securities were $2,706,000 and $500,000 for the quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Gross losses on the sales of
securities available for sale were $111,000 and $31,000 for the quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Gross gains on the sales of securities
were $4,966,000 and $921,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Gross losses on the sales of securities were $140,000 and
$73,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Securities with a fair value of $238,976,000 and $283,501,000 at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were pledged to secure public funds and
for other purposes as required or permitted by law.

NOTE 3. LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The Company s loan portfolio is broken down into segments to an appropriate level of disaggregation to allow management to monitor the
performance by the borrower and to monitor the yield on the portfolio. Management has incorporated the provisions of ASU 2010-20,
Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Loan Losses, resulting in a refinement in its portfolio
segregation. Consistent with the standard, the segments were further broken down into classes, to allow for differing risk characteristics within a
segment.
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The risks associated with lending activities differ among the various loan classes, and are subject to the impact of changes in interest rates,
market conditions of collateral securing the loans, and general economic conditions. All of these factors may adversely impact the borrower s
ability to repay its loans, and impact the associated collateral.

The Company has various types of commercial real estate loans which have differing levels of credit risk associated with them. Owner-occupied
commercial real estate loans are generally dependent upon the successful operation of the borrower s business, with the cash flows generated
from the business being the primary source of repayment of the loan. If the business suffers a downturn in sales or profitability, the borrower s
ability to repay the loan could be in jeopardy.

Non-owner occupied and multi-family commercial real estate loans present a different credit risk to the Company than owner-occupied
commercial real estate, as the repayment of the loan is dependent upon the borrower s ability to generate a sufficient level of occupancy to
produce rental income that exceeds debt service requirements and operating expenses. Lower occupancy or lease rates may result in a reduction
in cash flows, which hinder the ability of the borrower to meet debt service requirements, and may result in lower collateral values. The
Company generally recognizes greater risk is inherent in these credit relationships as compared to owner-occupied loans mentioned above in its
loan pricing.

Acquisition and development loans consist of 1-4 family residential construction and commercial and land development loans. The risk of loss

on these loans is largely dependent on the Company s ability to assess the property s value at the completion of the project, which should exceed
the property s construction costs. During the construction phase, a number of factors could potentially negatively impact the collateral value,
including cost overruns, delays in completing the project, competition, and real estate market conditions which may change based on the supply
of similar properties in the area. In the event the collateral value at the completion of the project is not sufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance, the Company must rely upon other repayment sources, including the guarantors of the project or other collateral securing the loan.

Commercial and industrial loans include advances to local and regional businesses for general commercial purposes and include permanent and
short-term working capital, machinery and equipment financing, and may be either in the form of lines of credit or term loans. Although
commercial and industrial loans may be unsecured to our highest rated borrowers, the majority of these loans are secured by the borrower s
accounts receivable, inventory and machinery and equipment. In a majority of these loans, the collateral also includes the business real estate or
the business owner s personal real estate or assets. Commercial and industrial loans present credit exposure to the Company as they are more
susceptible to risk of loss during a downturn in the economy, as borrowers may have greater difficulty in meeting their debt service requirements
and the value of the collateral may decline. The Company attempts to mitigate this risk through its underwriting standards, including evaluating
the credit worthiness of the borrower and to the extent available, credit ratings on the business. Additionally, monitoring of the loans through
annual renewals and meetings with the borrowers are common. However, these procedures cannot eliminate the risk of loss associated with
commercial and industrial lending.

The Company originates loans to its retail customers, including fixed-rate and adjustable rate first lien mortgage loans with the underlying 1-4
family owner-occupied residential property securing the credit. The Company s risk exposure is minimized in these types of loans through the
evaluation of the credit worthiness of the borrower, including credit scores and debt-to-income ratios, and underwriting standards which limit the
loan-to-value ratio to generally no more than 80% upon loan origination, unless the borrower obtains private mortgage insurance.

Home equity loans, including term loans and lines of credit, present a slightly higher risk to the Company than 1-4 family first liens, as these
loans can be first or second liens on 1-4 family owner-occupied residential property, but can have loan-to-value ratios of no greater than 90% of
the value of the real estate taken as collateral. The credit worthiness of the borrower is considered including credit scores and debt-to-income
ratios, which generally cannot exceed 38%.
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Installment and other loans credit risk are mitigated through the Company s underwriting standards, including the evaluation of the credit
worthiness of the borrower, including credit scores and debt-to-income ratios, and if secured, the collateral value of the assets. As these loans
can be unsecured or secured by assets the value of which may depreciate quickly or may fluctuate, they present a greater risk to the Company
than 1-4 family residential loans.

The loan portfolio, excluding residential loans held for sale, broken out by classes, as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was as follows:

June 30, December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $170,948 $ 199,646
Non-owner occupied 149,819 141,037
Multi-family 30,239 27,327
Acquisition and development:
1-4 family residential construction 4,610 7,098
Commercial and land development 49,153 77,564
Commercial and industrial 211,717 277,900
Residential mortgage:
First lien 117,642 104,327
Home equity - term 14,826 37,513
Home equity - Lines of credit 81,319 80,951
Installment and other loans 7,707 12,077

$ 837,980 $ 965,440

In order to monitor ongoing risk associated with its loan portfolio and specific credits within the segments, management uses an eight point
internal grading system. The first four rating categories, representing the lowest risk to the Bank, are combined and given a Pass rating. The

Special Mention category includes loans that have potential weaknesses that may, if not monitored or corrected, weaken the asset or
inadequately protect the Bank s position at some future date. These assets pose elevated risk, but their weakness does not yet justify a more
severe, or criticized rating. Management generally follows regulatory definitions in assigning criticized ratings to loans, including substandard,
doubtful or loss. Substandard loans are classified as they have a well-defined weakness, or weaknesses that jeopardize liquidation of the debt.
These loans are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Substandard
loans include loans that management has determined not to be impaired, as well as loans considered to be impaired. A doubtful loan has a high
probability of total or substantial loss, but because of specific pending events that may strengthen the asset; its classification of loss is deferred.

Loss assets are considered uncollectible, as the underlying borrowers are often in bankruptcy, have suspended debt repayments, or ceased
business operations. Once a loan is classified as Loss , there is little prospect of collecting the loan s principal or interest and it is generally written
off.

The Bank has a loan review policy and program which is designed to reduce and control risk in the lending function. The Credit Administration
Committee, comprised of members of the Board, is charged with the overall credit quality and risk exposure of the Company s loan portfolio.
This includes the monitoring of the lending activities of all Bank personnel with respect to underwriting and processing new loans and the timely
follow-up and corrective action for loans showing signs of deterioration in quality. The loan review program provides the Bank with an internal
(through an outsourced third party beginning in 2011), independent review of the Bank s loan portfolio on an ongoing basis. Generally, consumer
and residential mortgage loans are included in the Pass categories unless a specific action, such as extended delinquencies, bankruptcy,
repossession or death of the borrower occurs, which heightens awareness as to a possible credit event.
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Loan reviews are completed annually on all commercial relationships with a committed loan balance in excess of $1,000,000. Loan review
documentation is submitted to the Credit Administration Committee quarterly with a formal review and rating as presented by independent loan
review personnel. In addition, all relationships greater than $250,000 rated Substandard, Doubtful or Loss are reviewed by the Credit
Administration Committee on a quarterly basis, with reaffirmation of the rating as recommended by the Bank s Problem Loan Committee or
independent loan review personnel. In addition to the policy and procedure guidelines noted above, the Company expanded its review coverage
during the last three quarters of 2011 in light of softness in overall economic conditions and deterioration of underlying collateral securing
lending relationships. As a result, all commercial real estate, construction and development loans, and commercial loans in excess of $500,000,
representing over 75% coverage of these portfolios, have been reviewed. The Company will continue with this expanded review throughout
2012.

The following summarizes the Bank s ratings based on its internal risk rating system as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

Special Non-Impaired Impaired -

(Dollars in thousands) Pass Mention Substandard Substandard  Doubtful Total
June 30, 2012:

Commercial real estate:

Owner-occupied $138,056 $14,141 $ 10,727 $ 7834 $ 190 $170,948
Non-owner occupied 107,427 11,596 15,330 15,466 0 149,819
Multi-family 18,014 7,812 4,227 186 0 30,239
Acquisition and development:

1-4 family residential construction 1,647 436 533 1,269 725 4,610
Commercial and land development 16,304 9,482 9,821 12,914 632 49,153
Commercial and industrial 158,368 27,874 8,541 15,196 1,738 211,717
Residential mortgage:

First lien 111,245 1,783 1,787 2,827 0 117,642
Home equity - term 14,568 50 166 42 0 14,826
Home equity - Lines of credit 78,579 1,034 1,669 37 0 81,319
Installment and other loans 7,656 42 6 3 0 7,707

$651,804 $74250 $ 52,807 $ 55,774 $ 3,285  $837,980

December 31, 2011:

Commercial real estate:

Owner-occupied $161,695 $19,820 $ 8,321 $ 8828 $ 982  $199,646
Non-owner occupied 93,379 19,689 7,785 16,661 3,523 141,037
Multi-family 14,896 7,581 1,387 1,328 2,135 27,327
Acquisition and development:

1-4 family residential construction 3,361 724 831 2,182 0 7,098
Commercial and land development 28,513 16,274 13,713 19,064 0 77,564
Commercial and industrial 190,675 19,859 14,232 50,047 3,087 277,900
Residential mortgage:

First lien 102,398 0 596 1,333 0 104,327
Home equity - term 36,290 0 638 585 0 37,513
Home equity - Lines of credit 80,881 0 70 0 0 80,951
Installment and other loans 12,075 0 2 0 0 12,077

$724,163 $83947 $ 47,575 $ 100,028 $ 9,727  $965,440

Classified loans may also be evaluated for impairment. For commercial real estate, acquisition and development and commercial and industrial
loans, a loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.
Generally, loans that are more than 90 days past due are deemed impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and
payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including
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the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal
and interest owed, to determine if the loan should be placed in nonaccrual status. Nonaccrual loans in the commercial and commercial real estate
portfolios are, by definition, deemed to be impaired. Impairment is
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measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial, construction and restructured loans by either the present value of the expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan s effective interest rate, the loan s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. A loan is collateral dependent if the repayment of the loan is expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral. For loans
that are deemed to be impaired for extended periods of time, periodic updates on fair values are obtained, which may include updated appraisals.
The updated fair values will be incorporated into the impairment analysis as of the next reporting period. In the event an updated appraisal that
requires a higher impairment reserve is received after a reporting period, but prior to the issuance of the financial statements, an evaluation is
made as to the significance of the difference and whether the amounts need to be reflected in the financial statements not yet issued.

Loan charge-offs, which may include partial charge-offs, are taken on an impaired loan that is collateral dependent if the loan s carrying balance
exceeds its collateral s appraised value; the loan has been identified as uncollectible; and it is deemed to be a confirmed loss. Typically, impaired
loans with a charge-off or partial charge-off will continue to be considered impaired, unless the note is split into two, and management expects
the performing note to continue to perform and is adequately secured. The second, or non-performing note, would be charged-off. As of the
periods presented, the Company has no loans to borrowers that resulted from splitting impaired loans into multiple notes. Generally, an impaired
loan with a partial charge-off will continue to have an impairment reserve on it after the partial charge-off, if factors warrant.

As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, nearly all of the Company s impaired loans extent of impairment was measured based on the
estimated fair value of the collateral securing the credit, except for certain troubled debt restructurings not in nonaccrual status. By definition,
troubled debt restructurings are considered impaired. For real estate loans, collateral generally consists of commercial real estate, but in the case
of commercial and industrial loans, it would also consist of accounts receivable, inventory, equipment or other business assets. Commercial and
industrial loans may also have real estate collateral.

At the time a real estate-secured loan is deemed impaired, management determines whether an updated certified appraisal of the real estate is
necessary to assist in determining the extent of an impairment reserve, if any. The decision for requiring an updated appraisal takes into
consideration the age of the most recent appraisal, the loan-to-value ratio based on the original certified appraisal, the Company s recent
experience and knowledge of market conditions, recent list prices or broker opinions, the condition of the property, and environmental factors. If
market conditions have changed significantly from the date of the most recent appraisal, an updated appraisal will be obtained. As of October 1,
2011, the Company amended its policy, which now requires annual updated appraisals for criticized loans in excess of $250,000. In many cases
the asis value provided in the appraisal is used as the fair value of the collateral in determining impairment, unless circumstances, such as
subsequent improvements, approvals, or other circumstances dictate that another value provided by the appraiser is more appropriate.

Generally impaired loans secured by real estate were measured at fair value using certified real estate appraisals that had been completed within
the last year. Appraised values are further discounted for estimated costs to sell the property and other selling considerations to arrive at the
property s fair value. In those situations in which it is determined an updated appraisal is not required for loans individually evaluated for
impairment, fair values are based on one or a combination of the following approaches. In those situations in which a combination of approaches
is considered, the one that carries the most consideration will be the one management believes is warranted. The approaches are as follows:

Original appraisal - if the original appraisal provides a strong loan-to-value (generally 70% or lower) and, after consideration of
market conditions and knowledge of the property and area, it is determined by the Credit Administration staff that there has not been
a significant deterioration in the collateral value, the original certified appraised value may be used. Discounts as deemed appropriate
for selling costs are factored into the appraised value in arriving at fair value.

Discounted cash flows - In limited cases, discounted cash flows may be used on projects in which the collateral is liquidated to
reduce the borrowings outstanding, and is also used to validate collateral values derived from other approaches.
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Collateral on certain impaired loans is not limited to real estate, and consists of accounts receivable, inventory, equipment or other business
assets. Estimated fair values are determined based on borrowers financial statements, inventory ledgers, accounts receivable agings or appraisals
from individuals with knowledge in the business. Stated balances are generally discounted for the age of the financial information or the quality
of the assets. In determining fair value, liquidation discounts are applied to this collateral based on existing loan evaluation policies.

The Company distinguishes Substandard loans on both an impaired and non-impaired basis, as it places less emphasis on a loan s classification,
and increased reliance on whether the loan was performing in accordance with the contractual terms. Substandard classification does not
automatically meet the definition of impaired . A Substandard credit is one that is inadequately protected by current sound worth or paying
capacity of the obligor or the collateral pledged, if any. Extensions of credit so classified have well-defined weaknesses which may jeopardize
the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not
corrected. Loss potential, while existing in the aggregate amount of Substandard credits, does not have to exist in individual extensions of credit
classified Substandard. As a result, the Company revised its methodology in its evaluation of certain accruing commercial real estate, acquisition
and development and commercial and industrial loans rated Substandard to be collectively evaluated for impairment as opposed to evaluating
these loans individually for impairment. Although we believe these loans have well defined weaknesses and meet the definition of Substandard ,
they are generally performing and management has concluded that it is likely it will be able to collect the scheduled payments of principal and
interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.

Larger groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Generally, the Bank does not separately identify
individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures, unless such loans are the subject of a restructuring agreement due to
financial difficulties of the borrower.

The following summarizes impaired loans by class, segregated by those for which a specific allowance was required and those for which a
specific allowance was not required as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. In the first quarter of 2012, the Company began to more
aggressively charge off specific reserve allocations on impaired loans rather than to carry related allowances. At December 31, 2011, specific
reserves related to anticipated closing costs, additional market discounts on appraisal values and specific reserves identified during periods
subsequent to the balance sheet. Allowances established at June 30, 2012 generally pertain to those credits in which an updated appraisal is
pending, and the partial charge-off will be recorded when received.

Impaired Loans with a Specific Allowance Impaired Loans with No Specific Allowance
Unpaid Unpaid
Recorded Principal Balance Recorded Principal Balance
Investment (Legal Related Investment (Legal

(Dollars in thousands) (Book Balance) Balance) Allowance (Book Balance) Balance)
June 30, 2012
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,024 $ 11,162
Non-owner occupied 1,274 1,274 346 14,192 25,667
Multi - family 0 0 0 186 2,969
Acquisition and development:
1-4 family residential construction 725 725 413 1,269 3,756
Commercial and land development 632 632 363 12,914 28,420
Commercial and industrial 1,830 1,830 945 15,104 25,636
Residential mortgage:
First lien 453 453 8 2,374 2,826
Home equity - term 0 0 0 42 277
Home equity - lines of credit 0 0 0 37 37
Installment and other loans 0 0 0 3 3

$4,914 $ 4,914 $ 2,075 $ 54,145 $ 100,753
December 31, 2011
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Commercial real estate:

Owner-occupied $ 5016 $ 5200 $ 1,762 $ 4794 $ 4,838
Non-owner occupied 16,682 20,472 6,876 3,502 4,071
Multi - family 3,129 5,117 1,213 334 334
Acquisition and development:

1-4 family residential construction 2,182 3,715 926 0 0
Commercial and land development 10,657 13,899 4,369 8,407 9,712
Commercial and industrial 46,685 47,256 14,591 6,449 6,551
Residential mortgage:

First lien 1,122 1,122 9 211 211
Home equity - term 41 41 42 544 709

$85514 $96,822  $29,788  $24,241  $26,426

The following summarizes the average recorded investment in impaired loans and related interest income recognized on loans deemed impaired
as of June 30:

Three Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011
Average Interest Average
Impaired Income Impaired
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Recognized Balance
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $10,336 $ 4 $ 1,727
Non-owner occupied 16,911 293 1,589
Multi-family 1,175 0 1,533
Acquisition and development:
1-4 family residential construction 1,620 2 66
Commercial and land development 13,358 116 5,231
Commercial and industrial 26,742 72 20,182
Residential mortgage:
First lien 1,657 27 466
Home equity - term 304 2 710
Home equity - lines of credit 19 0 0
Installment and other loans 2) 0 0
Total $72,124 $ 516 $ 31,504
Six Months Ended June 30,
2012 2011
Average Interest Average
Impaired Income Impaired
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Recognized Balance
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $10,161 $ 44 $ 1,380
Non-owner occupied 18,002 360 1,747
Multi-family 1,938 0 1,052
Acquisition and development:
1-4 family residential construction 1,807 2 44
Commercial and land development 15,260 187 3,487
Commercial and industrial 35,539 226 17,027
Residential mortgage:
First lien 1,549 27 467
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Home equity - term 398

Home equity - lines of credit 12

Installment and other loans 1

Total $ 84,667
_21-
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The following presents impaired loans that are troubled debt restructurings, as well as the number of loans modified as of June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011:

Troubled Debt Restructurings New Troubled Debt Restructurings

At Period End Six Months Ended June 30,
Number of Recorded Number of Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) Contracts Investment Contracts Investment
June 30, 2012
Accruing:
Commercial real estate:
Non-owner occupied 2 $ 2,008 0 $ 0
Commercial and industrial 2 334 0 0
Residential mortgage:
First lien 1 453 0 0
Home equity - lines of credit 1 37 1 37
6 2,832 1 37
Nonaccruing:
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied 2 709 0 0
Non-owner occupied 1 193 0 0
Acquisition and development:
Commercial and land development 4 1,671 0 0
Commercial and industrial 9 3,709 1 203
Residential mortgage:
First lien 1 299 1 299
17 6,581 2) 502
23 $ 9413 3 $ 539
New Troubled Debt Restructurings
Troubled Debt Restructurings Year Ending December 31,
At Period End 2011
Number Number
of Recorded of Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) Contracts Investment Contracts Investment
December 31, 2011
Accruing:
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied 1 $ 924 1 $ 924

Non-owner occupied 2 2,039 2 2,039
Acquisition and development:

1-4 family residential construction 0 0 0 0
Commercial and land development 2 1,061 2 1,061
Commercial and industrial 10 23,434 10 23,434

Residential mortgage:
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First lien

Nonaccruing:

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied

Non-owner occupied

Acquisition and development:
Commercial and land development
Commercial and industrial
Residential mortgage:

Home equity - term

459 0

16 27,917 15

1 54 1
1 221 1
3 3,179 3
10 5,648 10
1 544 0
16 9,646 15

32 $37,563 30

27,458

54
221

3,179
5,648

9,102

$ 36,560

The loans presented above were considered troubled debt restructurings as the result of the Company agreeing to below market interest rates for
the risk of the transaction, allowing the loan to remain on interest only status, or for residential mortgage loans, agreeing to a temporary
reduction in interest rates for periods not exceeding 12 months in order to assist the borrowers to improve cash flows during such periods.

Troubled debt restructurings included in nonaccrual status at June 30, 2012 were designated as such either due to the borrower defaulting on the
modified terms within the past twelve months, or management s determination the borrower would not be able to continue to meet debt service
requirements for a sustainable period of time or where newly restructured debts had not yet reached a minimum of 6 months of performance

according to modifications. As of June 30, 2012, 17 loans totaling $6,581,000 were in default of their restructured terms.

No additional commitments have been made to borrowers whose loans are considered troubled debt restructurings.

Management further monitors the performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio by analyzing the length of time a portfolio is past due, by
aggregating loans based on its delinquencies. The following table presents the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by aging categories of
performing loans and nonaccrual loans as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

June 30, 2012

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied
Non-owner-occupied
Multi-family

Acquisition and development:

1-4 family residential construction
Commercial and land development
Commercial and industrial
Residential mortgage:

First lien

Home equity - term

Home equity - Lines of credit
Installment and other loans

Current

$ 161,362
136,239
29,188

2,808
34,699
193,329

112,460
14,688
81,163

7,633

$ 773,569

Days Past Due
30-59 60-89
$ 434 § 782

122 0
198 400
391 0
721 27
206 602
1,443 604
72 0

129 27

46 15
$3,762  $2,457

90+

(still accruing)

$ 346
0
267

142
159
255

106

SRR

$ 1,275

Total
Past Due

$ 1,562
122
865

533
907
1,063

2,153
72
156
61

$ 7,494

Non-
Accrual

$ 8,024
13,458
186

1,269
13,547
17,325

3,029
66

0

13

$56,917

Total
Loans

$170,948
149,819
30,239

4,610
49,153
211,717

117,642
14,826

81,319
7,707

$ 837,980
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December 31, 2011

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied
Non-owner-occupied

Multi-family

Acquisition and development:

1-4 family residential construction
Commercial and land development
Commercial and industrial
Residential mortgage:

: ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

$188,679 $2,135 § 0

122,816 75 0

23,864 0 0

4916 0 0

59,121 440 0

246,696 1,341 15
_23-

[ Re)

[ Re)

$ 2,135
75
0

0
440
1,356

$ 81832
18,146
3,463

2,182
18,003
29,848

$ 199,646
141,037
27,327

7,098

77,564
277,900
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First lien 100,215 1,637 547 0 2,184 1,928 104,327
Home equity - term 35,998 283 9 0 292 1,223 37,513
Home equity - Lines of credit 80,783 98 0 0 98 70 80,951
Installment and other loans 11,932 141 2 0 143 2 12,077

$875,020 $6,150 $573 $0 $6,723  $83,697  $965,440

The Bank maintains the allowance for loan losses at a level believed adequate by management to absorb losses inherent in the portfolio. It is
established and maintained through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Quarterly, management assesses the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses utilizing a defined methodology, which considers specific credit evaluation of impaired loans as discussed above, past
loan loss historical experience, and qualitative factors. Management believes the approach properly addresses the requirements of ASC

Section 310-10-35 for loans individually identified as impaired, and ASC Subtopic 450-20 for loans collectively evaluated for impairment, and
other bank regulatory guidance.

For each loan class presented above, general allowances are provided for loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment, which is based on
quantitative factors, principally historical loss trends for the respective loan class, adjusted for qualitative factors. Effective December 31, 2011,
the historical loss factor was based on average charge-offs for the last eight quarters and applied to the entire pool of loans, excluding those
loans evaluated for impairment under ASC 310-10-35. In addition, an additional adjustment to the historical loss factors is made to account for
delinquency and other potential risk not elsewhere defined within the Allowance for Loan and Lease Loss methodology. The refinement to the
methodology was made as management determined that the most recent eight quarters loss history as adjusted based on other portfolio analysis
and applied to an entire pool of loans is a better reflection of the losses inherent on non-impaired loans within the portfolio. In making this
determination, management considered current economic and real estate conditions, trends in historical charge-off percentages at the Company
as well as peers, and feedback from regulators.

In addition to the changes mentioned under ASC 450-20, the Company refined its methodology under ASC 310-10-35 in the manner in which
partial charge offs are calculated. Based on management s assessment and in compliance with regulatory guidance, the Company will generally
incur partial charge offs in total by the amount a loan s carrying value exceeds its fair value, less discount for market conditions and costs to
dispose, eliminating the need for specific reserves. This will be accomplished by charging the loan off to a level below the fair market value, or
appraisal value, of collateral less costs to sell. This method will result in the loan being carried at the fair market value of collateral, less any
discounted determined necessary based on current market conditions, less costs to dispose of the asset. As a result, the Company experienced
significantly higher charge-offs than would have been incurred in prior periods. Management estimates that charge-offs for the six months ended
June 30, 2012 were increased by $43,000,000 when compared to methods used over prior periods. In direct correlation with this change in
methodology, the historical loss rates have been elevated when compared to prior periods which does affect the reserves held under ASC
450-20. Management believes this is a more conservative method for calculating the allowance for loan losses.

In addition to the quantitative analysis, additional reserves are allocated on loans collectively evaluated for impairment based on additional
qualitative factors. The qualitative factors used by management to adjust the historical loss percentage to the anticipated loss allocation, which
range from O 8 basis points per factor, include:

Nature and Volume of Loans - Loan growth in the current and subsequent quarters based on the Bank s targeted growth and strategic plan,
coupled with the types of loans booked based on risk management and credit culture, and number of exceptions to loan policy; supervisory loan
to value exceptions etc.

Concentrations of Credit and Changes within Credit Concentrations - Factors considered including the Bank s overall portfolio makeup and
managements evaluation relating to concentration risk management and the inherent risk associated with the concentrations identified.

-4 -
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Experience, Ability and Depth of Management/Lending staff - Factors considered include the years experience of Senior and Middle

Management and the lending and loan review staff and turnover of the staff.

Other External Factors (Economic, Legal, Competition, Regulatory etc.) - Ratios and factors considered include trends in the consumer price
index (CPI); unemployment rates; housing price index; housing statistics compared to the prior year; bankruptcy rates; regulatory and legal

environment risks and competition.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Installment
Commercial Acquisition Commercial Residential and
(Dollars in thousands) Real Estate and Development and Industrial = Mortgage Other Unallocated
June 30, 2012
Balance, beginning of period $ 10,836 $ 6,719 $ 7,242 $ 1,301 $ 45 $ 2,013
Provision for loan losses 13,000 2,549 7,824 377) 79 (75)
Charge-offs (10,039) (2,665) (3,890) (44) (57) 0
Recoveries 1,407 200 158 7 2 0
Balance, end of period $ 15,204 $ 6,803 $ 11,334 $ 887 $ 69 $ 1,938
Commercial Installment
Real Acquisition Commercial Residential and
(Dollars in thousands) Estate and Development and Industrial Mortgage Other Unallocated
June 30, 2011
Balance, beginning of period $ 4,884 $ 3,245 $ 8,212 $ 1,712 $ 93 $ 252
Provision for loan losses 2,894 4,357 12,138 517 13 1,311
Charge-offs (542) (2,576) (9,218) (79) (17) 0
Recoveries 8 0 0 0 8 0
Balance, end of period $ 7,244 $ 5,026 $ 11,132 $ 2,150 $ 97 $ 1,563
Activity in the allowance for loan losses for six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
Installment
Commercial Acquisition Commercial Residential and
(Dollars in thousands) Real Estate and Development and Industrial = Mortgage Other Unallocated
June 30, 2012
Balance, beginning of period $ 13,864 $ 9,708 $ 17,569 $ 933 $ 75 $ 1,566
Provision for loan losses 21,772 6,399 13,387 215 55 372
Charge-offs (21,846) 9,977) (19,814) (272) (69) 0
Recoveries 1,414 673 192 11 8 0
Balance, end of period $ 15,204 $ 6,803 $ 11,334 $ 887 $ 69 $ 1,938
June 30, 2011
Balance, beginning of period $ 5,324 $ 1,767 $ 6,795 $ 1,863 $ 106 $ 165
Provision for loan losses 3,165 5,835 13,600 427 0 1,398
Charge-offs (1,253) (2,576) (9,263) (140) (24) 0
Recoveries 8 0 0 0 15 0

Total

$ 28,156

23,000
(16,695)

1,774

$ 36,235

Total

$ 18,398
21,230
(12,432)
16

$ 27,212

Total

$ 43,715

42,200
(51,978)

2,298

$ 36,235
$ 16,020
24,425

(13,256)
23

34



Edgar Filing: ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

Balance, end of period $ 7244 % 5026 $ 11,132 $ 2,150 $ 97 $ 1,563 $ 27,212

The following summarizes the ending loan balance individually evaluated for impairment based upon loan segment, as well as the related
allowance for loan loss allocation for each at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

_25-
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Commercial Acquisition and Commercial and Residential Installment

(Dollars in thousands) Real Estate ~ Development Industrial Mortgage and Other  Unallocated Total

June 30, 2012

Loans allocated by:

Individually evaluated for impairment $ 23676 $ 15,540 $ 16,934 $ 2906 $ 3 % 0 $ 59,059

Collectively evaluated for impairment 327,330 38,223 194,783 210,881 7,704 0 778,921
$ 351,006 $ 53,763 $ 211,717 $ 213,787 $ 7,707 $ 0 $837,980

Allowance for loan losses allocated by:
Individually evaluated for impairment $ 346 $ 776  $ 945 $ 8 $ 0 $ 0 $ 2,075
Collectively evaluated for impairment 14,858 6,027 10,389 879 69 1,938 34,160

$ 15204 $ 6,803 $ 11,334 $ 887 § 69 $ 1938 $ 36,235

December 31, 2011

Loans allocated by:

Individually evaluated for impairment $ 33457 % 21,246  $ 53,134  $ 1918 $ 0 $ 0 $109,755

Collectively evaluated for impairment 334,553 63,416 224,766 220,873 12,077 0 855,685
$ 368,010 $ 84,662 $ 277900 $ 222791 $ 12,077 $ 0 $965,440

Allowance for loan losses allocated by:

Individually evaluated for impairment $ 9,851 $ 5295 $ 14,591  $ 51 $ 0 $ 0 $ 29,788

Collectively evaluated for impairment 4,013 4,413 2,978 882 75 1,566 13,927

$ 13864 § 9,708 $ 17,569 § 933 §$ 75 $ 1,566 $ 43,715
NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITY

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had two interest rate swap agreements related to fixed rate loans. The Company used these interest rate
swaps to reduce interest rate risks and to manage interest income. By entering into these agreements, the Company converted floating rate assets
into fixed rate assets. These interest rate swap agreements were considered cash flow hedge derivative instruments that qualified for hedge
accounting. A portion of the amount was included in other comprehensive income and was reclassified from other comprehensive income to the
appropriate income statement line item as net settlements occurred.

During the three months ended March 31, 2011, the Company sold one of its interest rate swaps and recognized an $118,000 gain on the sale,
which was included as ineffective, once it no longer qualified as a hedge. The second interest rate swap was sold in the third quarter of 2011 and
as of December 31, 2011, there were no interest rate swaps remaining.

A roll forward of the unrealized gains (losses) on the derivatives, and the effects on the Company s income statement for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 30, 2011
Unrealized gains on derivatives in cash flow from hedging relationship, beginning of period $ 530 $ 918
Amount of gain recognized in other comprehensive income on derivative for effective portion of
cash flow hedge 252 130
Amount of gain reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into interest income (100) (235)
Amount of gain recognized as noninterest income for the ineffective portion of the cash flow
hedge (11) (142)
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Unrealized gains on derivatives in cash flow from hedging relationship, end of period $ 671

226 -

671
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NOTE 5. SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND REGULATORY CAPITAL

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company s and Bank s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.
Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to financial holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulators to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios (as set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of
Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes that, as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 the Company
and the Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of June 30, 2012, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized the Bank as well capitalized under
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total
risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following table. There are no conditions or events since the notification
that management believes have changed the Bank s category. The Company and the Bank s actual capital ratios as of June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 are also presented in the table.

Minimum to Be Well
Capitalized Under
Minimum Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Action Provisions
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
June 30, 2012
Total capital to risk weighted assets
Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. $ 106,227 11.7% $72,732 8.0% n/a n/a
Orrstown Bank 103,515 11.4% 72,685 80% $ 90,856 10.0%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets
Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. 94,545 10.4% 36,366 4.0% n/a n/a
Orrstown Bank 91,840 10.1% 36,342 4.0% 54,514 6.0%
Tier 1 capital to average assets
Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. 94,545 6.7 % 56,323 4.0% n/a n/a
Orrstown Bank 91,840 6.5% 56,365 4.0% 70,457 5.0%
December 31, 2011
Total capital to risk weighted assets
Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. $ 134,621 13.0% $ 83,090 8.0% n/a n/a
Orrstown Bank 127,529 12.3% 82,899 8.0% $103,624 10.0%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets
Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. 121,249 11.7% 41,545 4.0% n/a n/a
Orrstown Bank 114,187 11.0% 41,450 4.0% 62,175 6.0%
Tier 1 capital to average assets
Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. 121,249 8.2% 58,851 4.0% n/a n/a
Orrstown Bank 114,187 7.8% 58,682 4.0% 73,352 5.0%

NOTE 6. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 were as follows:
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(In thousands, except per share data)

Net income (loss)

Weighted average shares outstanding

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011
$ (9,914) $ (10,623) $(18,132) $ (6,796)

8,065 8,000 8,060 7,994

-7 -
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Impact of common stock equivalents 0 0 0 19
Weighted average shares outstanding (diluted) 8,065 8,000 8,060 8,013

Per share information:

Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (1.23) $ (1.33) $ (2.25) $ (0.85)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (1.23) (1.33) (2.25) (0.85)
Stock options for 314,000 and 371,000 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted earnings per share for the three
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, and stock options for 330,000 and 289,000 shares of common stock were not considered for the six
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 as they were anti-dilutive.

NOTE 7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financial needs of its
customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular
classes of financial instruments.

The Company s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company
uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Contract or Notional Amount

(Dollars in thousands) June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Commitments to fund:

Revolving, open ended home equity loans $ 78,027 $ 80,197

1-4 family residential construction loans 1,586 2,021

Commercial real estate, construction and land development loans 2,931 31,788

Commercial, industrial and other loans 69,106 91,530

Standby letters of credit 17,832 25,751

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each customer s credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies but may
include accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, residential real estate, and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved
in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers. The Company holds collateral supporting
those commitments when deemed necessary by management. The current amount of liability, as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, for
guarantees under standby letters of credit issued was not material.

The Company currently maintains a reserve in other liabilities totaling $851,000 and $782,000 at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 for
off-balance sheet credit exposures that currently are not funded, based on historical loss experience of the related loan class. For the three
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, ($34,000) and $250,000 was charged to other noninterest expense for this exposure, and for the six
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the amount expensed was $69,000 and $250,000.
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The Company has sold loans to the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago as part of its Mortgage Partnership Finance Program (  MPF Program ).
Under the terms of the MPF Program, there is limited recourse back to the Company for loans that do not perform in accordance with the terms

of the loan agreement. Each loan that is sold under the program is credit enhanced such that the individual loan s rating is raised to AA, as
determined by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago. The sum of each individual total of loans sold under the MPF Program was
$132,735,000, with limited recourse back to the Company on these loans of $8,420,000. Many of the loans sold under the MPF Program have
primary mortgage insurance, which reduces the Company s overall exposure.

NOTE 8. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Fair value measurements under generally accepted accounting principles defines fair value, describes a framework for measuring fair value and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements by establishing a three-level hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level
1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the assets or liabilities fall within different levels of the
hierarchy, the classification is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the asset or liability.
Classification of assets and liabilities within the hierarchy considers the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability
and transparency of the assumptions used to determine fair value.

The three levels are defined as follows: Level 1  inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets. Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active or by model-based techniques in which all significant inputs are
observable in the market for the asset or liability, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Level 3  the valuation methodology is
derived from model-based techniques in which at least one significant input is unobservable to the fair value measurement and based on the
Company s own assumptions about market participants assumptions.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured on a recurring basis at estimated fair value, as well as
the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy:

Securities

Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities

would include highly liquid government bonds, mortgage products and exchange traded equities. If quoted market prices are not available,
securities are classified within Level 2 and fair values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics or discounted cash flow. Level 2 securities would include U.S. agency securities, mortgage-backed agency securities, obligations
of states and political subdivisions and certain corporate, asset backed and other securities. In certain cases where there is limited activity or less
transparency around inputs to the valuation, securities are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. All of the Company s securities are
classified as available for sale.

The Company had no fair value liabilities at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. A summary of assets at June 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011, measured at estimated fair value on a recurring basis was as follows:

Total Fair Value
(Dollars in Thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Measurements
June 30, 2012
Securities available for sale:
U.S. Treasury $ 0 $ 14,983 $ 0 $ 14,983
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE) 0 39,992 0 39,992
States and political subdivisions 0 40,042 0 40,042

-29.-

41



Edgar Filing: ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

GSE residential mortgage-backed securities

Total debt securities

Equity securities:
Financial services
Other

Total equity securities

Total securities

December 31, 2011
Securities available for sale:

U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE)

States and political subdivisions

GSE residential mortgage-backed securities

Total debt securities

Equity securities:
Diversified
Energy

Financial services
Industrials
Technology
Other

Total equity securities

Total securities

Certain financial assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with GAAP. Adjustments to the fair value of these

124
128

252

$ 252

=]

37
141
166
150
221
323

1,038

$ 1,038

187,740 0
282,757 0
69 0

0 0

69 0

$ 282,826 $0

$ 43,622 $0

78,051 0
187,584 0
309,257 0

0 0
0 0
70 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
70 0

$ 309,327 $0

assets usually result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual assets.

187,740

282,757

193
128

321

$ 283,078

$ 43,622
78,051
187,584

309,257

37
141
236
150
221
323

1,108

$ 310,365

The following describes the valuation techniques used by the Company to measure certain financial assets recorded at fair value on a

nonrecurring basis in the financial statements:

Impaired Loans

Loans are designated as impaired when, in the judgment of management based on current information and events, it is probable that all amounts
due, according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement, will not be collected. The measurement of loss associated with impaired loans can

be based on either the observable market price of the loan or the fair value of the collateral. Fair value is measured based on the value of the
collateral securing the loan, less estimated costs to sell. Collateral may be in the form of real estate or business assets including equipment,

inventory, and accounts receivable. The value of the real estate collateral is determined utilizing an income or market valuation approach based

on an appraisal conducted by an independent, licensed appraiser outside of the Company using observable market data (Level 2). However, if

the collateral is a house or building in the process of construction, or if management adjusts the appraisal value, then the fair value is considered

Level 3. The value of business equipment is based upon an outside appraisal, if deemed significant, or the net book value on the applicable

business financial statements if not considered significant using observable market data. Likewise, values for inventory and accounts receivable
collateral are based on financial statement balances or aging reports (Level 3). Impaired loans with an allocation to the allowance for loan losses
are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; however not all impaired loans have an allocation to the allowance for loan losses. Any fair
value adjustments are recorded in the period incurred as a provision for loan losses on the consolidated statement of income. Specific allocations
to the allowance for loan losses were $2,075,000 and $29,788,000 at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Foreclosed Real Estate
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Other real estate property acquired through foreclosure is initially recorded at the fair value of the property at the transfer date less estimated
selling cost. Subsequently, other real estate owned is carried at the lower of its carrying value or the fair value less estimated selling cost. Fair
value is usually determined

2130 -
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based upon an independent third-party appraisal of the property or occasionally upon a recent sales offer. Specific charges to value the real estate
owned at the lower of cost or fair value on properties held at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were $449,000 and $365,000.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The fair value of mortgage servicing rights is estimated to be equal to its carrying value, unless the quarterly valuation model calculates the
present value of the estimated net servicing income as less than its carrying value, in which case a lower of cost or fair value charge is taken. As
of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, a $533,000 and $284,000 lower of cost or fair value reserve existed on the mortgage servicing rights
portfolio.

A summary of assets at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis is as follows:

Total
Fair Value

(Dollars in Thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Measurements
June 30, 2012

Impaired loans, net $ 0 $ 0 $ 45,983 $ 45,983
Foreclosed real estate 0 0 1,141 1,141
Mortgage servicing rights 0 0 2,112 2,112
December 31, 2011

Impaired loans, net $ 0 $ 0 $ 55,726 $ 55726
Foreclosed real estate 0 0 1,378 1,378
Mortgage servicing rights 0 0 2,253 2,253

The following table presents additional qualitative information about assets measured on a nonrecurring basis and for which the Company has
utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value:

Fair Value
Estimate Valuation Techniques Unobservable Input Range
June 30, 2012
Impaired loans $ 45983 Appraisal of collateral Management adjustments on appraisals 0% - 30% discount
for property type and recent activity
Management adjustments for 5% - 10% discount
liquidation expenses
Foreclosed real estate 1,141 Appraisal of collateral Management adjustments on appraisals 0% - 30% discount
for property type and recent activity
Management adjustments for 5% - 10% discount
liquidation expenses
Mortgage servicing rights 2,112 Discounted cash flows Remaining term 4.0 years
Discount rate 10.70%

Fair values of financial instruments

The Company meets the requirements for disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the
balance sheet. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation
techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows.
In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be
realized in immediate settlement of the instruments. Certain financial instruments and all non-financial instruments are excluded from disclosure
requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company.
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In addition to those disclosed above, the following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair values of financial
instruments as disclosed herein:
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Cash and Due from Banks. Federal Funds Sold. Short-Term Investments and Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks

The carrying amounts of cash and due from banks, short-term investments and interest bearing deposits with banks and federal funds sold
approximate their fair value.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. These loans typically consist of one-to-four family residential loans originated
for sale in the secondary market. Fair value is based on the price secondary markets are currently offering for similar loans using observable
market data which is not materially different than cost due to the short duration between origination and sale.

Loans Receivable

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values. Fair values
for fixed rate loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered in the market for loans with
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Restricted Investment in Bank Stock

These investments are carried at cost. The Company is required to maintain minimum investment balances in these stocks, which are not
actively traded and therefore have no readily determinable market value.

Deposit Liabilities

The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (that is, their
carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-term money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair
values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposits and IRAs are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation
that applies interest rates currently being offered in the market to a schedule of aggregated expected maturities on time deposits.

Short-Term Borrowings

The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased, borrowings under repurchase agreements, and other short-term borrowings maturing within 90
days approximate their fair values. Fair values of other short-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the
Company s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Long-Term Debt

The fair value of the Company s fixed rate long-term borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis based on the Company s
current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The carrying amounts of variable-rate long-term borrowings
approximate their fair values at the reporting date.

Accrued Interest
The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values.
Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments

The Company generally does not charge commitment fees. Fees for standby letters of credit and other off-balance-sheet instruments are not
significant.

The estimated fair values of the Company s financial statements were as follows at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

46



Edgar Filing: ORRSTOWN FINANCIAL SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

(Dollars in thousands)

June 30, 2012:

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks

Interest bearing deposits with banks
Restricted investments in bank stock

Carrying
Amount

$ 15,798
109,725
11,495

-32-

Fair
Value

$ 15,798
109,725
11,495

Level 1

$ 15,798
109,725
0

Level 2
$ 0
0
0

Level 3
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Securities available for sale 283,078 283,078 252 282,826 0
Loans held for sale 4,825 4,825 0 4,825 0
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 801,745 813,627 0 0 813,627
Accrued interest receivable 3,593 3,593 0 1,059 2,534
Mortgage servicing rights 2,112 2,112 0 0 2,112
Financial Liabilities

Deposits 1,144,384 1,148,716 0 1,148,716 0
Short-term borrowings 27,493 27,493 0 27,493 0
Long-term debt 38,142 39,384 0 39,384 0
Accrued interest payable 482 482 0 482 0
Off-balance sheet instruments 0 0 0 0 0
December 31, 2011:

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks $ 19,630 $ 19,630

Interest bearing deposits with banks 90,039 90,039

Restricted investments in bank stock 11,758 11,758

Securities available for sale 310,365 310,365

Loans held for sale 2,553

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 921,725 925,923

Accrued interest receivable 4,548 4,548

Mortgage servicing rights 2,253 2,253

Financial Liabilities

Deposits $ 1,216,902 $ 1,222,058

Short-term borrowings 35,013 35,013

Long-term debt 53,798 54,998

Accrued interest payable 907 907

Off-balance sheet instruments 0 0

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

Orrstown Financial Services, Inc. (the Company ) is a financial holding company with a wholly-owned bank subsidiary, Orrstown Bank (the

Bank ). The following is a discussion of our consolidated financial condition at June 30, 2012 and results of operations for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2012. Throughout this discussion, the yield on earning assets is stated on a fully taxable-equivalent basis and balances
represent average daily balances unless otherwise stated. The discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) and Notes thereto presented elsewhere in this report. Certain prior period amounts, presented in
this discussion and analysis, have been reclassified to conform to current period classifications.

Certain statements appearing herein which are not historical in nature are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements refer to a future period or periods, reflecting management s current
views as to likely future developments, and use words like may, will, expect, estimate, anticipate or similar terms. Because forward-looking
statements involve certain risks, uncertainties and other factors over which the Company has no direct control, actual results could differ
materially from those contemplated in such statements. These factors include (but are not limited to) the following: general economic conditions,
changes in interest rates, changes in the Company s cost of funds, changes in government monetary policy, changes in government regulation and
taxation of financial institutions, including changes resulting from the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and related
regulations, changes in the rate of inflation, changes in technology, our ability to attract skilled personnel and retain key members of our senior
management team, the intensification of competition within the Company s market area, the outcome of litigation against the Company and other
similar factors. For a discussion of these forward-looking statements and important factors that could cause results to differ materially from the
forward-looking statements contained in this Report, see Important Factors Relating to Forward Looking Statements contained in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The Company s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
( GAAP ) and follow general practices within the financial services industry in which it operates. Management, in order to prepare the Company s
consolidated financial statements, is required to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. These estimates, assumptions, and judgments are based on information available as of the balance sheet
date through the date the financial statements are filed with the SEC. As this information changes, the consolidated financial statements could
reflect different estimates, assumptions, and judgments. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions,
and judgments and as such have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originally reported. Estimates,
assumptions, and judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in the value of an
asset not carried on the financial statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to be established, or when an
asset or liability needs to be recorded contingent upon a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value inherently results in more
financial statement volatility. The fair values and the information used to record valuation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based
either on quoted market prices or are provided by other third-party sources.

The most significant accounting policies followed by the Company are presented in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. These
policies, along with the disclosures presented in the other financial statement notes, provide information on how significant assets and liabilities
are valued in the financial statements and how those values are determined. Based on the valuation techniques used and the sensitivity of
financial statement amounts to the methods, assumptions, and estimates underlying those amounts, the Company has identified the adequacy of
the allowance for loan losses and accounting for income taxes as critical accounting policies.

The allowance for loan losses represents management s estimate of probable credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Determining the amount
of the allowance for loan losses is considered a critical accounting estimate because it requires significant judgment and the use of estimates
related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on
historical loss experience, and consideration of current economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change.
The loan portfolio also represents the largest asset type on the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future effects of temporary differences and tax credits. Enacted tax rates are
applied to cumulative temporary differences based on expected taxable income in the periods in which the deferred tax asset or liability is
anticipated to be realized. Future tax rate changes could occur that would require the recognition of income or expense in the statement of
operations in the period in which they are enacted. Deferred tax assets must be reduced by a valuation allowance if in management s judgment it
is more likely than not that some portion of the asset will not be realized. Management may need to modify their judgments in this regard from
one period to another should a material change occur in the business environment, tax legislation, or in any other business factor that could
impair the Company s ability to benefit from the asset in the future. As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, management had concluded
that no valuation allowance was needed on its net deferred tax asset.

Readers of the consolidated financial statements should be aware that the estimates and assumptions used in the Company s current financial
statements may need to be updated in future financial presentations for changes in circumstances, business or economic conditions in order to
fairly represent the condition of the Company at that time.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company recorded a net loss of $9,914,000 for the second quarter of 2012 compared to a net loss of $10,623,000 for the same period in
2011. Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (EPS) for the second quarter of 2012 were ($1.23), compared to ($1.33) for the second quarter
of 2011. On a year-to-date basis, the net loss recorded for the period was $18,132,000 for 2012, compared to a net loss of $6,796,000 for the
same period in 2011. Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share totaled ($2.25) for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to ($0.85) in
2011.

Included below are ratios for the return on average tangible assets (ROTA) and return on average tangible equity (ROTE) which exclude
intangibles from the balance sheet and related amortization and tax expense from net income due to the associated goodwill and intangibles from
the acquisition of companies and purchased deposits.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June, 30, June, 30, June, 30, June, 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Return on average assets 2.81)% 2.77% (2.55)% (0.90)%
Return on average tangible assets (2.80)% (2.80)% 2.54)% (0.90)%
Return on average equity (33.81)% (26.03)% (29.63)% (8.44)%
Return on average tangible equity (33.97% (29.69)% (29.76)% 9.57%
Average equity / average assets 8.31% 10.65% 8.61% 10.65%

Supplemental Reporting of Non-GAAP-based Financial Measures

Return on average tangible assets and return on average tangible equity are non-GAAP-based financial measures calculated using
non-GAAP-based amounts. The most directly comparable measure is return on average assets and return on average equity, which are calculated
using GAAP-based amounts. The Company calculates the return on average tangible assets and equity by excluding the balance of intangible
assets and their related amortization expense, net of tax, from the calculation of return on average assets and equity. Management uses the return
on average tangible assets and equity to assess the Company s core operating results and believes that this is a better measure of our operating
performance as it is based on the Company s tangible assets and capital. We believe that excluding the impact of purchase accounting
adjustments allows for a meaningful comparison with the Company s peers; particularly those that may not have acquired other companies.
Lastly, the exclusion of goodwill and other intangible assets is consistent with the treatment by bank regulatory agencies on the calculation of
risk-based capital ratios, which excludes these amounts. However, these non-GAAP financial measures are supplemental and are not a substitute
for an analysis based on GAAP measures. A reconciliation of return on average assets and equity to the return on average tangible assets and
equity, is set forth below.

June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
For Quarter Ended:
Return on Average Assets (GAAP basis) (2.81)% 2.77)%
Effect of excluding average intangible assets and related amortization,
net of tax 0.01% (0.03)%
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Return on Average Tangible Assets (2.80) % (2.80)%

Return on Average Equity (GAAP basis) (33.81)% (26.03)%

Effect of excluding average intangible assets and related amortization, net

of tax (0.16)% (3.66)%
Return on Average Tangible Equity (33.97) % (29.69)%

June 30, June 30,
2012 2011

For Six Months Ended:

Return on Average Assets (GAAP basis) (2.55)% (0.90)%
Effect of excluding average intangible assets and related amortization,

net of tax 0.01% 0.00%
Return on Average Tangible Assets (2.54)% (0.90)%
Return on Average Equity (GAAP basis) (29.63) % (8.44)%
Effect of excluding average intangible assets and related amortization,

net of tax 0.13)% (1.13)%
Return on Average Tangible Equity (29.76) % 9.57)%

June 30, December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2012 2011
Common shareholders equity $ 107,629 $ 128,197
Less: Intangible assets 936 1,041
Tangible common equity $ 106,693 $ 127,156
Total assets $ 1,328,475 $ 1,444,097
Less: Intangible assets 936 1,041
Tangible assets $1,327,539 $ 1,443,056

Tangible book value per share is computed by dividing shares outstanding into tangible common equity. Management uses tangible book value
per share because it believes such ratio is useful in understanding the Company s capital position and ratios. A reconciliation of book value per
share to tangible book value per share is as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Book value per share $ 13.34 $ 15.92
Less: Intangible assets per share 0.11 0.13
Tangible book value per share $ 13.23 $ 15.79

Tax equivalent net interest income is derived from GAAP interest income and net interest income using an assumed tax rate of 35%. We believe
the presentation of net interest income on a tax-equivalent basis ensures comparability of net interest income arising from both taxable and
tax-exempt sources and is consistent with industry practice. The following reconciles net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis:
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(Dollars in thousands)

For Quarter Ended:

Net interest income

Effect of tax exempt income

Net interest income, tax equivalent basis
For Six Months Ended:
Net interest income

Effect of tax exempt income

Net interest income, tax equivalent basis

Balance at December 31, 2015
Acquisition

Translation adjustments
Balance at March 31, 2016

Other Intangible Assets

June 30,
2012

$ 9,546
583

$ 10,129

$ 20,388
1,235

$ 21,623

$ 221,271
84,520
5,146

$ 310,937

June 30,
2011

$ 12,810
718

$ 13,528

$ 25,198
1,404

$ 26,602

Intangible assets consist primarily of trade names, technology, and customer lists and relationships. These intangible

assets are amortized on the straight line method over the estimated useful life. Amortization expense for the three
months ended March 31, 2016 and the year ended December 31, 2015 was $11.3 million and $28.6 million,

respectively.

The Company’s intangible assets consist of the following:

March 31, 2016

Accumulated

Cost Amortization
Trade name $ 2,535 $ (1,475
Technology 164,092 (42,857)

Customer lists and relationships 137,263 (38,810)
Capitalized software and patents 14,821 (4,583)
Order Backlog 918 (918)

$ 319,629 $ (88,643)

17

Net

$ 1,060
121,235
98,453
10,238

$ 230,986
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December 31, 2015

Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net
Trade name $ 1,531 $ (1,372) $ 159
Technology 130,200 (35,336) 94,864
Customer lists and relationships 105,864 (33,969) 71,895
Capitalized software and patents 11,406 (4,002) 7,404
Order Backlog 918 (918) —

$ 249919 $ (75,597) $ 174,322

Estimated future amortization expense of its intangible assets for the next five years is as follows:

Year ending December 31:

2016 $ 35,798
2017 44,159
2018 40,941
2019 34,410
2020 25,614
2021 13,245

9. Debt

Credit Facility

In September 2013, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) with JP Morgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as the administrative agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as the syndication agent and Capital One,
National Association and KeyBank National Association, as co-documentation agents. The Credit Facility, which can
be used for general corporate purposes, is a $100 million unsecured revolving line of credit that matures on September
27,2018. The Company pays a commitment fee in the range of 25 to 35 basis points on the unused balance of the
revolving credit facility under the Credit Agreement. Commitment fees totaled approximately $74 thousand and
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$64 thousand during the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Synchronoss has the right to
request an increase in the aggregate principal amount of the Credit Facility to $150 million.

On March 1, 2016, the Company borrowed $50 million under the Credit Facility to fund acquisitions and capital asset
purchases. Interest on the borrowing was based upon LIBOR plus a 225 basis point margin. Interest expense on the
borrowings totaled $131 thousand during the three months ended March 31, 2016.

The Credit Facility is subject to certain financial covenants. As of March 31, 2016, the Company was in compliance
with all required covenants.

Convertible Senior Notes

On August 12, 2014, the Company issued $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 0.75% Convertible Senior
Notes due in 2019 (the “2019 Notes”). The 2019 Notes mature on August 15, 2019, and bear interest at a rate of 0.75%
per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year. The Company accounted for
the $230.0 million face value of the debt as a liability and capitalized approximately $7.1 million of financing fees,
related to the issuance.

The 2019 Notes are senior, unsecured obligations of the Company, and are convertible into shares of its common
stock based on a conversion rate of 18.8072 shares per $1,000 principal amount of 2019 Notes which is equivalent to
an initial conversion price of approximately $53.17 per share. The Company will satisfy any conversion of the 2019
Notes with shares of the Company’s common

18
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stock. The 2019 Notes are convertible at the note holders’ option prior to their maturity and if specified corporate
transactions occur. The issue price of the 2019 Notes was equal to their face amount.

Holders of the 2019 Notes who convert their notes in connection with a qualifying fundamental change, as defined in
the related indenture, may be entitled to a make-whole premium in the form of an increase in the conversion rate.
Additionally, following the occurrence of a fundamental change, holders may require that the Company repurchase
some or all of the 2019 Notes for cash at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes being
repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. As of March 31, 2016, none of these conditions existed with
respect to the 2019 Notes and as a result, the 2019 Notes are classified as long term.

The 2019 Notes are the Company’s direct senior unsecured obligations and rank equal in right of payment to all of the
Company’s existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness.

At March 31, 2016, the carrying amount of the liability was $225.2 million and the outstanding principal of the 2019
Notes was $230.0 million, with an effective interest rate of approximately 1.36%. The fair value of the 2019 Notes
was $228.0 million at March 31, 2016. The fair value of the liability of the 2019 Notes was determined using a
discounted cash flow model based on current market interest rates available to the Company. These inputs are
corroborated by observable market data for similar liabilities and therefore classified within Level 2 of the fair-value
hierarchy.

The interest expense of the Company’s 2019 Notes related to the contractual interest coupon was $431 thousand for the
three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

10. Restructuring

In March 2016, the Company initiated the preliminary phase of a work-force reduction as part of a corporate
restructuring, with reductions occurring across all levels and departments within the Company. This measure was
intended to reduce costs and to align the Company’s resources with its key strategic priorities. As of March 31, 2016,
there was $2.9 million of unpaid restructuring charges classified under accrued expenses on the balance sheet.
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A summary of the Company’s restructuring accrual at March 31, 2016 and changes during the three months ended
March 31, 2016, is presented below:

Balance at Balance at
December 31, 2015 Charges Payments March 31, 2016
Employment termination costs $ — $ 2,971 $ (117 $ 2,854
Facilities consolidation 54 — 3 51
Total $ 54 $ 2,971 $ (120) $ 2905

11. Legal Matters

On October 7, 2014, the Company filed an amended complaint in the United States District Court for the District of
New Jersey (Civ Act. No. 3:14-cv-06220) against F-Secure Corporation and F-Secure, Inc. (collectively, “F-Secure"),
claiming that F-Secure has infringed, and continues to infringe, several of the Company’s patents. In February 2015,
Synchronoss entered into a patent license and settlement agreement with F-Secure Corporation and F-Secure, Inc.
whereby the Company granted each of these companies (but not their subsidiaries or affiliates) a limited license to
Synchronoss’ patents. As a result of entering into the patent license and settlement agreement, the parties filed a joint
stipulation to dismiss the above complaint.

The Company’s 2011 acquisition agreement with Miyowa SA provided that former shareholders of Miyowa SA would
be eligible for earn-out payments, to the extent specified business milestones were achieved following the acquisition.
In December 2013, Eurowebfund and Bakamar, two former shareholders of Miyowa SA, filed a complaint against the
Company in the Commercial Court of Paris, France claiming that they are entitled to certain earn-out payments under
the acquisition agreement. The Company was served
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with a copy of this complaint in January 2014. On December 3, 2015, the Court dismissed all claims in the complaint
against the Company. On December 19, 2015, the former shareholders of Miyowa filed an appeal with the Court of
Appeal of Paris, France, appealing the Court’s decision.

The Company is not currently subject to any legal proceedings that could have a material adverse effect on its
operations; however, it may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of its business. The Company is currently the plaintiff in several patent infringement cases. The defendants in
several of these cases have filed counterclaims. Although the Company cannot predict the outcome of the cases at this
time due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation, the Company continues to pursue its claims and believes that the
counterclaims are without merit, and the Company intends to defend all of such counterclaims.

12. Subsequent Events Review

As of May 10, 2016, the Company has repurchased a total of 1 million shares of the Company’s common stock
pursuant to the share repurchase program announced on February 4, 2016 at an average price of approximately $31.25
per share.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the information set forth in our consolidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and in our annual

report Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. This report contains “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are subject to risks and

uncertainties and are based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management as of the date hereof based on

information currently available to our management. Use of words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plan
“hopes,” “should,” “continues,” “seeks,” “likely”” or similar expressions, indicate a forward-looking statement. Forward-lookin
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Actual results

may differ materially from the forward-looking statements we make. We caution investors not to place substantial

reliance on the forward-looking statements included in this report. These statements speak only as of the date of this

report (unless another date is indicated), and we undertake no obligation to update or revise the statements in light of

future developments. All numbers are expressed in thousands unless otherwise stated.
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Overview

We are a leading innovator of cloud solutions, software-based activation, secure mobility, identity management and
secure messaging for mobile carriers, enterprises, retailers and OEMs across the globe. Our software provides
innovative service provider and enterprise solutions that drive billions of transactions on a wide range of connected
devices across the world’s leading networks. Our solutions include: activation and provisioning software for devices
and services, cloud-based sync, backup, storage and content engagement capabilities, broadband connectivity
solutions, analytics, white label messaging, identity/access management and secure mobility management that enable
communications service providers (CSPs), cable operators/multi-services operators (MSOs) and original equipment
manufacturers (OEMs) with embedded connectivity (e.g. smartphones, laptops, tablets and MIDs, such as
automobiles, wearables for personal health and wellness, and connected homes), multi-channel retailers, medium and
large enterprises and their consumers as well as other customers to accelerate and monetize value-add services for
secure and broadband networks and connected devices.

Our Activation Software, Synchronoss Personal Cloud™ and Enterprise products and platforms provide end-to-end
seamless integration between customer-facing channels/applications, communication services, or devices and
“back-office” infrastructure-related systems and processes. Our customers rely on our solutions and technology to
automate the process of activation and content and settings management for their subscribers’ devices while delivering
additional communication services.

Our Synchronoss Activation solution orchestrates the complex and different back-end systems of communication
service providers to provide a best-in-class ordering system by orchestrating the workflow and consolidated
automated customer care services. This allows CSPs using our platforms to realize the full benefits of their offerings.
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The platforms also support, among other automated transaction areas, credit card billing, inventory management, and
trouble ticketing. In addition to this, the platform supports the physical transactions involved in customer activation
and service such as managing access service requests, local service requests, local number portability, and directory
listings.

Our Synchronoss Personal Cloud™ solution seamlessly transfers content from an old device to a new device, and syncs,
backs up and connects consumer’s content from multiple smart devices to our cloud platform. This allows carrier
customers to protect and manage their growing cache of personally generated, mobile content over long periods of
time.

Our Synchronoss Enterprise solutions support an advanced mobility digital experience for businesses and consumers
for accessing and protecting their information. Our identity and access management platform helps consumers and
business users to securely authenticate access to online websites to conduct ecommerce transactions or access
important data. Our secure mobility platforms help users safely and securely store and share important data. Our
solutions are based on understanding assumptions on the behaviors of individuals through the capture of who they are,
what they are doing and how, where and when they are doing it. This allows our platforms to help reduce fraud,
improve cybersecurity detection/prevention and overall productivity. Our identity and access solution supports both
consumers by allowing them to self-register and verify their identity, while providing non-intrusive multi-factor
authentication and businesses the ability to be sure the correct person is doing the transaction. The secure mobility
solution combines the identity platform with a “bring your own device” (BYOD) platform that is based on a secure
container for accessing data, applications, content and personal information management tools like email, calendar,
messaging and notes.

Our Integrated Life™ platform brings together select capabilities of our device/service Activation software and services
with our Synchronoss Personal Cloud™ and analytics solutions to give carrier subscribers innovative digital
experiences that work across new
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and emerging consumer devices (e.g. connected cars, wearables, connected homes, smart TV’s, etc.) in carrier and the
Internet of Things markets.

Our Synchronoss Messaging is a white label messaging platform for service providers and offers a full range of
deployment options including full integration with on premise systems, hybrid deployment support for optimal mix of
technologies and protecting existing investments, and full cloud deployment for both SaaS and hosted models.
Synchronoss Messaging features a distributed systems management console (messaging security, administration
console for user and domain provisioning and management, integration with Nagios for monitoring and alerts) with
support for smartphones, tablets and connected devices (support for leading protocols including iCal, CalDAV,
CardDAV, EAS, IMAP/IDLE), Native Mobile App for iOS and Android for mail, contacts, calendar and task
management.

Our products and platforms are designed to be carrier-grade, highly available, flexible and scalable to enable multiple
converged communication services to be managed across multiple distribution channels including e-commerce,
m-commerce, telesales, customer stores, indirect and other retail outlets allowing us to meet the rapidly changing and
converging services and connected devices offered by our customers. Our products, platforms and solutions enable
our Enterprise customers to acquire, retain and service subscribers quickly, reliably and cost-effectively with white
label and custom-branded solutions. Our customers can simplify the processes associated with managing the
customer experience for procuring, activating, connecting, backing-up, synchronizing and enterprise-wide
sharing/collaboration with connected devices and contents from these devices and associated services. The
extensibility, scalability, reliability and relevance of our platforms enable new revenue streams and retention
opportunities for our customers through new subscriber acquisitions, sale of new devices, accessories and new
value-added service offerings in the Cloud, while optimizing their cost of operations and enhancing customer
experience. We currently operate in and market our solutions and services directly through our sales organizations in
North America, Europe and Asia-Pacific.

Revenues

We generate a substantial portion of our revenues on a per-transaction or subscription basis, which is derived from
contracts that extend up to 60 months from execution. For the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, we
derived approximately 72% of our revenues from transactions processed and subscription arrangements.

Historically, our revenues have been directly impacted by the number of transactions processed. The future success of
our business depends on the continued growth of consumer and business transactions and, as such, the volume of
transactions that we process could fluctuate on a quarterly basis. See “Current Trends Affecting Our Results of
Operations” for certain matters regarding future results of operations.
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Most of our revenues are recorded in U.S. dollars but as we continue to expand our footprint with international
carriers and increase the extent of recording our international activities in local currencies, we will become subject to
currency translation risk that could affect our future net sales as reported in U.S. dollars.

Each of AT&T and Verizon accounted for more than 10% of our revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2016
and 2015. AT&T and Verizon in the aggregate accounted for 71% and 70% of our revenues for the three months
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. See “Risk Factors” for certain matters bearing risks on our future results
of operations.

Current Trends Affecting Our Results of Operations

Growth in our service provider and enterprise solutions are being driven by the massive penetration and use of smart
devices on a global basis. The following major trends drive our investment lens in acquisitions and development of
product and solutions:

Activation. Service Provider consolidation continues in the US and Internationally. As CSP’s merge with MSOs and
TV Providers there is an urgency provisioning new subscribers with devices and new value-add service bundles, while
driving cost out of the business. Synchronoss Activation is poised to create new efficiencies in often underserved
digital channels as a way to quickly provision combined subscriber bases and utilize traditionally underperforming
and lower cost digital sales channels.

Personal Cloud. Shorter carrier contracts and lease programs have resulted in faster device upgrade cycles by
customers resulting in increased device order transactions and activations. With mobile devices becoming content rich
and acting as a replacement for other traditional devices like PC’s, the ability to securely back up content from mobile
devices, sync it with other devices and share it with others in their community of family, friends and business
associates has become an essential need. The major Tier 1 carriers are also publicly discussing achieving 500%
penetration (multiple connected devices per user) by enabling connectivity to non-traditional
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devices. Such devices include connected cars, health and wellness devices, and connected home. The need for these
devices to be activated and managed and the contents from them to be stored in a common cloud are also expected to
be drivers of our businesses in the long term. Synchronoss Cloud products such as Personal Cloud, Mobile Content
Transfer, Backup & Transfer and Out of Box Experience (OOBE) are poised to respond to this trend with white label,
secure and scalable products for mobile devices.

Secure Mobility. As Enterprise looks to increase productivity, it turns to mobile. Yet it finds itself confronted with the
serious logistical challenges to not only managing stringent security requirements but also accommodating the
personal devices of its employees as a lower cost and more employee friendly option. This trend of Bring Your Own
Device (BYOD) is now prevalent enough that regulated industries are investigating new ways to merge Wall Street
level regulated security and privacy with main stream usability standards of Facebook, Twitter, Slacker and other third
party mobile services. Inherent in this challenge is managing multi factor authentication, policy driven credential
management and fraud protection as employees move in and out of “work” selves and “Home” selves — or even in, out or
between companies. In addition to be able to manage different personas, the ability to create more productive work
flows employing predictive analytics is taking on a higher value as a desirable function of a secure mobility platform.
Synchronoss’ Secure Mobility platform enables Enterprise to pivot quickly into the regulated BYOD work and realize
cost savings as well as productivity gains.

Messaging. Messaging as a medium is moving beyond standard email. Messaging is fast becoming an interface for
commerce. With the emergence of messaging giants such as what’s App, Line, Facebook and others, companies are
using advanced messaging to create commerce opportunities to give subscribers visibility to smart transactions within
a very sticky, high frequency environment. Chat bots, operating on Al fueled from semantic analysis of messaging
content are the latest entrants into create a “messaging user interface” that is linking subscribers and third parties
together across multiple channels. Service providers are not adopting new messaging clients to compete with highly
competitive and viral Over the Top players - instead they are adopting monetization techniques used by those players
to extend subscriber information into third party applications and chat interfaces creating stickier commerce
opportunities. Synchronoss Messaging is working closely with customers in the Asia Pacific market to evolve Service
Provider messaging into a cloud-centric commerce offering utilizing personal cloud, identity management and other
advanced messaging protocols that will open up new revenue streams and allow Operators to compete with OTT
providers in new ways.

To support our expected growth driven by the favorable industry trends mentioned above, we continue to look for
opportunities to improve our operating efficiencies, such as the utilization of offshore technical and non-technical
resources for our exception handling center management as well as routine software maintenance activities. We also
leverage modular components from our existing software platforms to build new products. We believe that these
opportunities will continue to provide future benefits and position us to support revenue growth. In addition, we
anticipate further automation of the transactions generated by our more mature customers and additional transaction
types. Our cost of services can fluctuate from period to period based upon the level of automation and the on-boarding
of new transaction and service types. We are also making investments in new research and development of new
products designed to enable us to grow rapidly in the mobile wireless market. Our purchase of capital assets and
equipment may also increase based on aggressive deployment, subscriber growth and promotional offers for free or
bundled storage by our major Tier 1 carrier customers.
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We continue to advance our plans for the expansion of our platforms' footprint with broadband carriers and
international mobile carriers to support connected devices and multiple networks through our focus on transaction
management and cloud-based services for back up, synchronization and sharing of content. Our initiatives with
AT&T, Verizon Wireless and other CSPs continue to grow both with our current businesses as well as new products.
We are also exploring additional opportunities through merger and acquisition activities to support our customer,
product and geographic diversification strategies.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with GAAP requires us to utilize accounting policies and make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingencies as of the date of
the condensed consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during a fiscal
period. Although we believe that our judgments and estimates are appropriate, correct and reasonable under the
circumstances, actual results may differ from those estimates. If actual results or events differ materially from those
contemplated by us in making these estimates, our reported financial condition and results of operations for future
periods could be materially affected. See “Risk Factors” for certain matters bearing risks on our future results of
operations.
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We believe that of our significant accounting policies, which are described in Note 2 in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, the following accounting policies involve a greater degree of judgment
and complexity. Accordingly, these are the policies which we believe are the most critical to aid in fully
understanding and evaluating our consolidated financial condition and results of operations:

- Revenue Recognition and Deferred Revenue
- Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

- Income Taxes

- Goodwill

- Noncontrolling interest

- Investments in Affiliates and Other Entities

- Business Combinations

- Stock-Based Compensation

There were no significant changes in our critical accounting policies and estimates discussed in our Form 10-K during
the three months ended March 31, 2016. Please refer to Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations contained in Part II, Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2015 for a more complete discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates.

Key Developments

On March 1, 2016, the Company acquired all outstanding shares of Openwave for $124.5 million, net of working
capital adjustments and liabilities assumed, comprised of $102.5 million paid in cash and $22 million paid in shares of
the Company’s common stock, based upon the average market value of the common stock for the ten trading days
prior to the acquisition date.

Openwave’s product portfolio includes its core complete messaging platform optimized for today’s most complex
messaging requirements worldwide with a particular geographic strength in Asia Pacific. With this acquisition and
combined with Synchronoss’ current global footprint, we will have direct access to subscribers around the world for
the Synchronoss Personal Cloud platform and bolster our go-to-market efforts internationally.

Results of Operations

Three months ended March 31, 2016 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015
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The following table presents an overview of our results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and

2015:

Net revenues

Cost of services*
Research and
development

Selling, general and
administrative

Net change in contingent
consideration obligation
Restructuring charges
Depreciation and
amortization

Total costs and expenses
(Loss) income from
operations

*  Cost of services excludes depreciation and amortization which is shown separately.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2016
$

(in thousands)

$ 142,686
68,306

24,097
27,581

341
2,971

24,055
147,351

$ (4,665)

2015

% of Revenue $

100.0 %
479 %
169 %
193 %
0.2 %
2.1 %
169 %
1033 %
33 %

$ 132,926
53,655

22,024

20,883

3,240

14,835
114,637

$ 18,289

% of Revenue

100.0
40.4

16.6

15.7

11.2
86.2

13.8

%
%

%

%

%
%

2016 vs 2015

$ Change

$ 9,760
14,651

2,073
6,698

341
(269)

9,220
32,714

$ (22,954)

% Change
7.3 %
273 %
9.4 %
321 %
100.0 %
83 %
622 %
285 %
(125.5) %

Net Revenues. Net revenues increased $9.8 million to $142.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016,
compared to the same period in 2015. Transaction and subscription revenues as a percentage of sales were 72% or
$103.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 compared to 72% or $96.3 million for the same period in
2015. The $7.0 million increase in transaction and subscription revenue is primarily due to new subscription
arrangements as a result of our expansion with new customers and increased transactional services with our existing

customers. Professional service and license revenues as a percentage of sales were 28% or
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$39.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016, compared to 28% or $36.6 million for the same period in
2015.

Net revenues related to Activation Solutions decreased $552 thousand to $61.2 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2016 compared to the same period in 2015. Net revenues related to Activation Solutions represented 43%
for the three months ended March 31, 2016, compared to 46% for the same period in 2015. Net revenues related to our
Cloud Solutions increased by $10.3 million to $81.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 compared to
the same period in 2015. The increase in our Cloud Service performance was a result of the expansion of our customer
base and increased adoption of our cloud offerings. Net revenues related to our Cloud Solutions represented 57% for
the three months ended March 31, 2016, compared to 54% for the same period in 2015.

Expenses

Cost of Services. Cost of services increased $14.7 million to $68.3 million for the three months ended

March 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015, due primarily to an increase of $5.9 million relating to our
migration and integration costs associated with acquisitions done in 2015 and an incremental $3.4 million related to
the launch of our Enterprise solution. We also had an additional increase of approximately $2.2 million as a result of
our Openwave acquisition.

Research and Development. Research and development expense increased $2.1 million to $24.1 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015 primarily due to an increase of $3.8 million in
outside consultant expense which was driven by the launch of our Enterprise solution offset by a $1.6 million decrease
in personnel and related costs due to the capitalization of qualified software costs.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense increased $6.7 million to

$27.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015. The increase was
driven by a $1.4 million increase related to our acquisition related activities, a $2.2 million increase in personnel and
related costs which was driven by increased headcount due to the launch of our Enterprise solution and a $2.1 million
increase in outside consultants, the most significant increases in outside consultants related to costs incurred for the
launch of our Enterprise solution.

Net Change in Contingent Consideration Obligation. The net change in contingent consideration obligation resulted
in a $341 thousand increase for the three months ended March 31, 2016, as compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2015 related to the fair value increase of the Razorsight earn-out.
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Restructuring Charges. Restructuring charges were $3.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 related to
employment termination costs as a result of the work force reduction plan started in March 2016 to reduce costs and
align our resources with our key strategic priorities.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $9.2 million to $24.1 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015. This was primarily related to the increase
in depreciable fixed assets necessary for the continued expansion of our platforms and amortization of our newly
acquired intangible assets related to our recent acquisitions.

Income from Operations. Income from operations decreased $23.0 million to a loss of $4.7 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015. This was primarily due to increases in
depreciable fixed assets, intangible asset amortization and additional costs associated with our acquired operations.

Interest Income. Interest income increased $164 thousand to $630 thousand for the three months ended
March 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015. Interest income increased primarily due to higher average
investment balances compared to the same period in 2015.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $234 thousand to $1.6 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2016, compared to the same period in 2015 due primarily to an increase of approximately $141 thousand
primarily related to the $50 million drawdown from the Credit Facility.

Other Expense. Other expense increased $898 thousand to $884 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2016,
compared to the same period in 2015. Other expense increased primarily due to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations, specifically the strengthening of the British Pound Sterling against the U.S. Dollar.
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Income Tax. We recognized approximately $4.0 million and $6.9 million in related income tax expenses during the
three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Our effective tax rate was approximately (61.0)% for the
three months ended March 31, 2016, which was higher than our U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to the
recording of a non-cash income tax provision of $2.9 million in income tax expense to establish a valuation
allowance. We considered all available evidence, including our historical profitability and projections of future
taxable income together with new evidence, both positive and negative, that could affect the view of the future
realization of deferred tax assets. As a result of our assessment, we recorded $2.9 million in income tax expense
related to a valuation allowance that reduced the deferred tax asset primarily related to our current net operating loss
carryforward. Our effective tax rate was approximately 39.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, which was
slightly higher than our U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to the unfavorable impact of the fair market value
adjustment for the contingent consideration obligation related to the Strumsoft earn-out. We review the expected
annual effective income tax rate and make changes on a quarterly basis as necessary based on certain factors such as
changes in forecasted annual operating income, changes to the actual and forecasted permanent book-to-tax
differences, and changes resulting from the impact of tax law changes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity has been cash provided by operations and borrowings on our Credit Facility. Our
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balance was $194.7 million at March 31, 2016, a decrease of $38.9
million as compared to the balance at December 31, 2015. This decrease was primarily due to our acquisition of
Openwave, purchases of fixed assets and repurchases of outstanding common stock under the Board approved
repurchase program. This was offset by borrowings under the Credit Facility and cash provided by operations. We
anticipate that our principal uses of cash in the future will be to fund the expansion of our business through both
organic growth as well as possible acquisition activities and the expansion of our customer base internationally. Uses
of cash will also include facility and technology expansion, capital expenditures, and working capital.

At March 31, 2016, our non-U.S. subsidiaries held approximately $19.7 million of cash and cash equivalents that are
available for use by all of our operations around the world. At this time, we believe these funds will be permanently
reinvested outside of the U.S. However, if these funds were repatriated to the U.S. or used for U.S. operations, certain
amounts could be subject to U.S. tax for the incremental amount in excess of the foreign tax paid. Due to the timing
and circumstances of repatriation of such earnings, if any, it is not practical to determine the unrecognized deferred tax
liability related to the amount.

Convertible Senior Notes

On August 12, 2014, we issued $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of 0.75% Convertible Senior Notes due in
2019 (the “2019 Notes”). The 2019 Notes mature on August 15, 2019, and bear interest at a rate of 0.75% per annum
payable semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year. We accounted for the $230 million face
value of the debt as a liability and capitalized approximately $7.1 million of financing fees, related to the issuance. At
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March 31, 2016, the carrying amount of the liability was $225.2 million and the outstanding principal of the 2019
Notes was $230.0 million, with an effective interest rate of approximately 1.36%.

Credit Facility

In September 2013, we entered into a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
the administrative agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as the syndication agent and Capital One, National
Association and KeyBank National Association, as co-documentation agents. The Credit Facility, which can be used
for general corporate purposes, is a $100 million unsecured revolving line of credit that matures on September 27,
2018. We have the right to request an increase in the aggregate principal amount of the Credit Facility to $150
million.

On March 1, 2016, we borrowed $50 million under the Credit Facility to fund acquisitions and capital asset purchases.
Interest on the borrowing was based upon LIBOR plus a 225 basis point margin. Interest expense on the borrowings
totaled $131 thousand during the three months ended March 31, 2016.

The Credit Facility is subject to certain financial covenants. As of March 31, 2016, we were in compliance with all
required covenants.

Share Repurchase Program

On February 4, 2016, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program under which we
may repurchase up to $100 million of our outstanding common stock. We plan to make such purchases at prevailing
prices over the next 12 to 18 months.
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As of March 31, 2016, we repurchased approximately 553 thousand shares of our common stock for $16.6 million in
connection with our existing share repurchase program.

Discussion of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2016 was
$37.7 million, as compared to $135 thousand used for the same period in 2015. Cash flows from operations increased
by approximately $37.9 million. The operating cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2016 benefited from
a decrease in accounts receivables driven by the collection of large receivable balances during the quarter combined
with an increase in deferred revenue balances.

Cash flows from investing. Net cash used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2016 was
$107.6 million, as compared to $87.0 million used for the same period in 2015. The increase was primarily due to the
acquisition of Openwave Messaging, Inc.

Cash flows from financing. Net cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2016 was
$35.3 million, as compared to $3.6 million provided by financing activities for the same period in 2015. The increase
in net cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2016 of $31.7 million as compared
to 2015 was primarily due to $50 million in borrowings on our Credit Facility offset by repurchases of common stock
of $16.6 million.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from our existing operations, our available
credit facilities and other available sources of financing will be sufficient to fund our operations for the next twelve
months based on our current business plan.

Effect of Inflation

Although inflation generally affects us by increasing our cost of labor and equipment, we do not believe that inflation
has had any material effect on our results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2016 or 2015.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards
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In March, 2016, the FASB released Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-09, “Compensation - Stock
Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting.” The ASU includes
multiple provisions intended to simplify various aspects of the accounting for share-based payments. While aimed at
reducing the cost and complexity of the accounting for share-based payments, the amendments are expected to
significantly impact net income, earnings per share, and the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for public
companies in annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those years. We are
currently evaluating the impact of adoption on our consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).” Under ASU 2016-02, lessees will be required
to recognize, for all leases of 12 months or more, a liability to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. Additionally, the guidance requires improved
disclosures to help users of financial statements better understand the nature of an entity’s leasing activities. This ASU
is effective for public reporting companies for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with
early adoption permitted, and must be adopted using a modified retrospective approach. We are in the process of
evaluating the effect of the new guidance on our consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) (collectively, the “Boards”) jointly
issued a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede nearly all existing revenue recognition
guidance under US GAAP and IFRS. The standard’s core principle (issued as ASU 2014-09 by the FASB and as IFRS
15 by the IASB), is that a company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. These may include identifying performance obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable
consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance
obligation. The new guidance must be adopted using either a full retrospective approach for all periods presented in
the period of adoption or a modified retrospective approach. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14,
which defers the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year, and would allow entities the option to early adopt the
new revenue standard as of the original effective date. This ASU is effective for public reporting companies for
interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017.We are currently evaluating the adoption method and
the impact of the standard on the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 that have, or are reasonably
likely to have, a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or
expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that are material to our interests.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risk

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in

Part II, “Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2015, which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results.
We believe our exposure associated with these market risks has not changed materially since December 31, 2015.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We conduct business outside of the U.S. in several currencies including the British Pound Sterling, Euro, Australian
Dollar, Indian Rupee, Philippine Peso, Japanese Yen, Chinese Yuan, Hong Kong Dollar, Swiss Franc, and the
Canadian Dollar.

We do not hold any derivative instruments and do not engage in any hedging activities. Although our reporting
currency is the U.S. dollar, we may conduct business and incur costs in the local currencies of other countries in which
we may operate, make sales and buy materials. As a result, we are subject to currency translation risk. Further,
changes in exchange rates between foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar could affect our future net sales and cost of
sales and could result in exchange losses.

We cannot accurately predict future exchange rates or the overall impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our
business, results of operations and financial condition. To the extent that our international activities recorded in local
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currencies increase in the future, our exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates will correspondingly increase
and hedging activities may be considered if appropriate.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to the risk of interest rate fluctuations on the interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents.
A hypothetical 100 basis point movement in interest rates applicable to our cash and cash equivalents outstanding at
March 31, 2016 would increase interest income by less than $1.7 million on an annual basis.

Borrowings under our credit facility, are at variable rates of interest and expose us to interest rate risk. As such, our
net income is sensitive to movements in interest rates. If interest rates increase, our debt obligations on the variable
rate indebtedness would increase even though the amount borrowed remained the same, and our net income would
decrease. Such increases in interest rates could have a material adverse effect on our cash flow and financial condition.

Based on our outstanding borrowings at March 31, 2016, a one-percentage point change in interest rates would have
affected interest expense on the debt by $500 thousand on an annualized basis.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as
of March 31, 2016. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of March 31, 2016, the end of the period covered by this
quarterly report, to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and that such information
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is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in internal controls over financial reporting

On March 1, 2016, we completed our acquisition of Openwave Messaging, Inc. (“Openwave”). SEC guidance permits
management to omit an assessment of an acquired business' internal control over financial reporting from
management's assessment of internal control over financial reporting for a period not to exceed one year from the date
of the acquisition. Accordingly, we have not assessed Openwaves’ internal control over financial reporting as of
March 31, 2016.

Excluding the Openwave acquisition, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified
in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Exchange Act Rule 13a-15 that was conducted during
the last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On October 7, 2014, we filed an amended complaint in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey
(Civ Act. No. 3:14-cv-06220) against F-Secure Corporation and F-Secure, Inc. (collectively, “F-Secure"), claiming that
F-Secure has infringed, and continues to infringe, several of our patents. In February 2015, we entered into a patent
license and settlement agreement with F-Secure Corporation and F-Secure, Inc. whereby we granted each of these
companies (but not their subsidiaries or affiliates) a limited license to our patents. As a result of entering into the

patent license and settlement agreement, the parties filed a joint stipulation to dismiss the above complaint.

Our 2011 acquisition agreement with Miyowa SA provided that former shareholders of Miyowa SA would be eligible
for earn-out payments to the extent specified business milestones were achieved following the acquisition. In
December 2013, Eurowebfund and Bakamar, two former shareholders of Miyowa SA filed a complaint against us in
the Commercial Court of Paris, France claiming that they are entitled to certain earn-out payments under the
acquisition agreement. We were served with a copy of this complaint in January 2014. On December 3, 2015, the
Court dismissed all claims in the complaint against us. On December 19, 2015, the former shareholders of Miyowa
filed an appeal with the Court of Appeal of Paris, France, appealing the Court’s decision.
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We are not currently subject to any legal proceedings that could have a material adverse effect on our operations;
however, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our
business. We are currently the plaintiff in several patent infringement cases. The defendants in several of these cases
from time to time may file counterclaims. Although due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation, we cannot predict
the outcome of any of these actions at this time, we continue to pursue our claims and believe that any counterclaims
are without merit, and we intend to defend against all such counterclaims.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in

Part I, “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, which could
materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. The risks described in our Form 10-K are not the
only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be
immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or operating results. If any of

the risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be negatively affected. In that
case, the trading price of our stock could decline, and our stockholders may lose part or all of their investment.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table provides information relating to our repurchase of common stock during the three months ended
March 31, 2016

Total Number Approximate
Dollar Value
of Shares of
Shares That
Total Average Purchased as May
Yet Be
Number of Price Part of Publicly Purchased
Paid
Shares Per Announced Under the
Period Purchased Share Program Program
3/1/2016- 3/31/2016 552,500 $ 30.00 552,500 $ 83,419,170
Total 552,500 $ 30.00 552,500 $ 83,419,170

The repurchases were made under the stock repurchase program approved by our Board of Directors and announced
on February 4, 2016 and through which we were authorized to purchase up to $100 million of our common stock. The
program does not have an expiration date.

Repurchases under the program may take place in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions and may be
made pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 plan.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

No.

32

34

4.2

10.8

10.8.1

10.9

10.9.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

101.INS

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Commission File No. 333-132080).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Commission File No. 333-132080).

Form of the Registrant’s Common Stock certificate, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Commission File No. 333-132080).

Credit Agreement dated as of September 27, 2013 between the Registrant and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

Form of Indenture for Convertible Senior Notes, incorporated by reference to Registrants Form S-3
(Commission File No. 333-132080).

Cingular Master Services Agreement, effective September 1, 2005 by and between the Registrant and
Cingular Wireless LLC, incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2008.

Subordinate Material and Services Agreement No. SG021306.S.025 by and between the Registrant and
AT&T Services, Inc. dated as of August 1, 2013, including order numbers SG021306.S5.025.S.001,
SG021306.S.025.5.002, SG021306.S.025.S.003 and SG021306.5.025.S.004, incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as adopted
pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as adopted
pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and
section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and
section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
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101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Synchronoss Technologies, Inc.

/s/Stephen G. Waldis

Stephen G. Waldis

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal executive officer)

/s/Karen L. Rosenberger

Karen L. Rosenberger

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

May 10, 2016
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